
Lloyd Aldred recently hit 25 years as an employee and an 
SDA member at the Coles Distribution Centre, Launceston. 
See page 19 for more on this story.
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The July 2021 Annual Wage Review 
(AWR) delivered an increase of 2.5% 
which, for retail workers, was delayed 
until 1 September. 

We reported in the Winter edition of 
TasTalk that SDA National Secretary 
Gerard Dwyer would communicate 
with retail companies to have the 2.5% 
increase apply from 1 July 2021.

The Branch is able to report that the 
following companies have agreed to 
this, and the improved wages came 
in on time – two months earlier than 
the September provision: Woolworths 
Supermarkets, Big W, Dan Murphy’s, 
BWS, and EG Fuels.

coles out of step
Coles supermarket workers received 
the 2020 AWR increase on 5 October 
last year. This year, however, the 
company has decided to stick with 
the Fair Work Commission’s unfair 
decision to delay the 2.5% increase 
to 1 September 2021, with the same 
implementation date for Coles Express 
workers.

Members in remaining companies 
will receive the next pay increase 
in accordance with their Enterprise 
Bargaining Agreement.

tasmanian Vaccinations
The Federal Government has a plan 
(Operation Covid Shield) in place for 
80% of those aged 16 and over to be 
fully vaccinated by December. 

Based on the daily average of second 
doses at the time of writing, it is 

anticipated that Tasmania will reach the 
80% target by 8 November.

Tasmania trails only the ACT for the 
delivery target of 70% first dose by 20 
October, with 80% to be vaccinated by 
7 November which, at that time, both 
the ACT and NSW are expected to have 
reached 80%.

Early in September, Minister for 
Housing, Michael Ferguson, said the 
State hoped to reach a 90% vaccination 
rate by 1 December, which it is on track 
to achieve, and a public health advice 
report to be received in mid October 
would direct any border reopening 
plans.

Accordingly, the plan flags that school 
vaccinations (for 12-15 year olds) could 
be under way by early December.

Labor’s Sarah Lovell MLC said the party 
would hold its position that public 
health and expert advice should dictate 
when borders reopen, and that the 
Tasmanian health system would struggle 
to deal with any type of outbreak. 

She also said the Government should be 
taking steps now to ensure that it is able 
to cope when borders reopen.

The Premier now says Tasmania needs a 
90% Covid vaccination rate before fully 
opening borders. He wants all eligible 
Tasmanians aged 12 and over to have 
had the option to be fully vaccinated by 
1 December against COVID-19 before 
the State opens its borders.

reopening with a  
coVid-safe plan 
In order to facilitate a safe reopening, 
the SDA has structured a five-point 
Covid Safety Plan:

	 Social Distancing – Maintain 
physical distancing measures and 
the provision of Personal Protective 
Equipment;

 Sanitisation – Maintain hygiene, 
cleaning and disinfection with 
alcohol-based hand sanitiser, with 
availability to wash hands with soap 
and water;

	 Security – A zero-tolerance 
approach to customer abuse. 
Increased security to assist customer 
compliance with physical distancing 
and other public health order 
measures, including face masks and 
QR codes;

 Vaccine Plus – A Covid-Safe plan with 
practical measures to assist low-paid 
workers by providing time off without 
loss of pay including paid pandemic 
leave, test and isolate leave, and paid 
vaccination and paid vaccination 
booster leave;

 Ventilation – Ensuring that ventilation 
and air flow from heating, ventilation 
and air conditioning systems are well 
maintained and fresh air is circulated.

Job security
Despite the presence of the two big 
retailers Coles and Woolworths, and 
their divisional branches, 97% of 
Tasmanian businesses are small, making 
it vital that workers have the income and 
job security to support them.

Recently, the ACTU and its affiliate, 
Unions Tasmania, conducted a campaign 
in the seat of Bass that started on 
Monday 30 August and transitioned into 
Braddon the following week.

This campaign focused on job security 
and wage increases (or lack of) given that 
Tasmania has the highest level of casual 
workers of any State and is on lower 
wages than the rest of Australia. Over 
20,000 workers in Tasmania work more 
than one job.

pay rises, Vaccinations, a push for  
secure Jobs... there's a lot going on!

by paul griffin, 
general 
secretary
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anticipated that Tasmania will reach the 
80% target by 8 November.

Tasmania trails only the ACT for the 
delivery target of 70% first dose by 20 
October, with 80% to be vaccinated by 
7 November which, at that time, both 
the ACT and NSW are expected to have 
reached 80%.

Early in September, Minister for 
Housing, Michael Ferguson, said the 
State hoped to reach a 90% vaccination 
rate by 1 December, which it is on track 
to achieve, and a public health advice 
report to be received in mid October 
would direct any border reopening 
plans.

Accordingly, the plan flags that school 
vaccinations (for 12-15 year olds) could 
be under way by early December.

Labor’s Sarah Lovell MLC said the party 
would hold its position that public 
health and expert advice should dictate 
when borders reopen, and that the 
Tasmanian health system would struggle 
to deal with any type of outbreak. 

She also said the Government should be 
taking steps now to ensure that it is able 
to cope when borders reopen.

The Premier now says Tasmania needs a 
90% Covid vaccination rate before fully 
opening borders. He wants all eligible 
Tasmanians aged 12 and over to have 
had the option to be fully vaccinated by 
1 December against COVID-19 before 
the State opens its borders.

reopening with a  
covid-safe plan 
In order to facilitate a safe reopening, 
the SDA has structured a five-point 
Covid Safety Plan:

	 Social Distancing – Maintain 
physical distancing measures and 
the provision of Personal Protective 
Equipment;

 Sanitisation – Maintain hygiene, 
cleaning and disinfection with 
alcohol-based hand sanitiser, with 
availability to wash hands with soap 
and water;

	 Security – A zero-tolerance 
approach to customer abuse. 
Increased security to assist customer 
compliance with physical distancing 
and other public health order 
measures, including face masks and 
QR codes;

 Vaccine Plus – A Covid-Safe plan with 
practical measures to assist low-paid 
workers by providing time off without 
loss of pay including paid pandemic 
leave, test and isolate leave, and paid 
vaccination and paid vaccination 
booster leave;

 Ventilation – Ensuring that ventilation 
and air flow from heating, ventilation 
and air conditioning systems are well 
maintained and fresh air is circulated.

Job security
Despite the presence of the two big 
retailers Coles and Woolworths, and 
their divisional branches, 97% of 
Tasmanian businesses are small, making 
it vital that workers have the income and 
job security to support them.

Recently, the ACTU and its affiliate, 
Unions Tasmania, conducted a campaign 
in the seat of Bass that started on 
Monday 30 August and transitioned into 
Braddon the following week.

This campaign focused on job security 
and wage increases (or lack of) given that 
Tasmania has the highest level of casual 
workers of any State and is on lower 
wages than the rest of Australia. Over 
20,000 workers in Tasmania work more 
than one job.

Although members of the SDA may be 
more protected because of enterprise 
agreements with minimum hours and 
roster strategies, Tasmania, across the 
board, has the highest level of casual 
work. Tasmanian workers earn 13% less 
than the Australian median weekly wage.

Around one in three employed people in 
Tasmania are on insecure, non-standard 
work arrangements including casuals, 
independent contractors or fixed-term 
contracts.

wage crisis
Since early 2014, wages across the 
whole economy have grown at an annual 
average rate of 2%, resulting in a growing 
wages crisis. 

Wage growth in the private sector which 
covers retail, fast food and warehouse 
employees, is much weaker.

The 2% wages growth, which is 
calculated by the Australian Bureau of 
Statistics Wage Price Index, is barely 
half the pace of traditional wage growth 
usually seen in Australia.

The pandemic has made things worse. 
Based on a year-on-year basis, wages 
growth effectively stopped during the 
worst months of 2020, and saw wages 
growth fall to 1.4% – the worst since the 
Depression, while productivity per hour 
has risen by 2.5%.

With retail workers remaining at the 
fore during the pandemic, the Fair Work 
Commission (FWC) delayed the annual 
wage increase to 1 September for these 
workers – it is normally from 1 July. This 
is incredibly unfair!

As major retailers and supermarket 
chains reported record sales and profits, 
there is no good reason why the FWC 
would withhold the increase for another 
two months for these very essential 
workers.

Less than 2% wage increases for nearly 
eight years is bad enough – meaning that 
with the inflation rate increases over this 
period, the change in real wage growth 
would be little above zero.

Therefore, workers are unable to buy 
more goods and services with their 
wages, and if wages are unable to grow 
then spending will not grow either, 
slowing down local business and services 
in the community.

Collectively, the union movement has 
been standing up for workers for more 
than a century and on average, union 
members earn $250 more per week than 
non-union members.

The SDA continues to negotiate higher 
pay rates to ensure its members receive 
a fair day’s pay for a fair day’s work in 
its Enterprise Agreements and Awards 
negotiated at the national level.

pay rises, vaccinations, a push for  
secure Jobs... there's a lot going on!

DON’T  S IGN!
It’s really important that you don’t sign anything put in front 

of you by your employer without contacting the SDA first. This 

is especially important at the moment with some changes to 

industrial relations rules still in place in response to the pandemic.

Phone us on 1300 152 851 or email us at secretary@sdatas.asn.au.
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by paul griffin, 
general secretary

There are a range of workplace issues 
on the boil at the moment, so in this 
issue, we’ve taken a break from how 
enterprise bargaining is going (of 
course, we’ll be in touch with members 
in individual workplaces if there’s 
anything to report!) and are looking at 
some wider developments.

check in tas Qr code
As at 6 September, more than 38,700 
venues had registered to implement 
the Check in TAS QR code, in order to 
keep communities safe from a potential 
COVID-19 outbreak.

There have been over 38,901,308 
total check-ins across the regions as all 
workers must check in each time they 
register at their workplace and on every 
shift, whether the same day or not. 

Starting in August and continuing into 
September, the Government continues 
to open clinics around the State with a 
target of more than 63% of Tasmanians 
having a first dose by 12 September. 
As of 2 September, more than 460,000 
doses had been delivered.

Vaccination paid leaVe
Earlier in the year the SDA, along with 
the National Retail Association (NRA), 
wrote to the Prime Minister urging 
him to consider frontline workers in 
the retail, fast food and warehousing 
industries as a priority for vaccination 
against COVID-19.

Retail workers are essential frontline 
workers and the SDA has called on all 
employers in the retail, fast food and 
warehousing industries to provide 

without meaningful guaranteed hours, 
and years of low wage growth where 
there are no new policies.

In order to turn this around, the 
Federal Government must take action 
by implementing stronger laws to 
protect workers from this spreading of 
unreliable and insecure work.

In the past eight years, the Liberal-
National Government has been pushing 
back on any wage increases, even 
though the cost of living keeps going up. 
They have also been reducing peoples’ 
rights at work.

Secure work is a worker’s right! Stability 
needs to be brought back into the 
workforce as permanency in work is 
connected to many basic things such 
as: mental health, food, housing, and 
money to spend in the local economy.

See pages 6-7 for more information on 
the union movement’s Secure Jobs – 
Worth Fighting For campaign.

annual wage reView
The Fair Work Commission (FWC) has 
handed down the 2021 Annual Wage 
Review Decision, granting a 2.5% 
increase from 1 July to the national 
minimum wage and modern award 
minimum wages. However, the Decision 
did not include all Awards and, once 
again, essential workers in retail, 
covered by the General Retail Industry 
Award, did not receive the increase 
until 1 September 2021.

Another 21 Awards were pushed out 
further, including the Hospitality and 
Restaurant Awards, Fitness, Hair and 
Beauty and Models Awards, and will not 
receive the increase until 1 November 
2021.

A number of the SDA’s Enterprise 
Agreements reflect the General 
Retail Industry Award, and with retail 

additional paid vaccination leave for 
their workers, as no one should have 
to lose pay or utilise their accrued 
entitlements in order to receive their 
vaccinations.

Many employers responded positively 
including Officeworks, Bunnings,  
Kmart, Target, Woolworths, Big W,  
Dan Murphy’s and BWS.

In some cases, casuals are not eligible to 
access paid leave but are encouraged to 
discuss flexibility with management.

secure work: worth fighting for
Despite the presence of the two big 
retailers Coles and Woolworths and 
their divisional branches, 97% of 
Tasmanian businesses are small, making 
it vital that workers have the income 
and job security to support them.

Australian Unions has launched a 
campaign in support of gaining more 
reliable jobs with fair wages and 
providing workplaces with more 
permanent full-time workers.

Permanent full-time workers are now 
a minority of working Australians for 
the first time since Federation, and this 
campaign has been implemented to try 
to reverse the trend.

More than 1 in 4 workers are now in 
insecure work with no access to sick 
leave or holidays. 

The Federal Government could change 
laws to make jobs more reliable and 
secure, but seems to be choosing to 
support big business and multinational 
corporations instead.

Australia used to have the most stable, 
reliable jobs in the world. 

Now jobs are more casualised with 
fewer rights, labor hire that underpays 
for the same job, part-time work 

workers continuing to be at the fore, 
the National Secretary has called on 
employers to implement the increase 
from 1 July 2021.

Woolworths Supermarkets and Big W 
agreed in mid June to implement the 
increase from 1 July 2021, and on  
25 June, Dan Murphy’s and BWS 
advised that they had brought forward 
the increase to the same date as other 
brands within the group.

As Woolworths and its brands have 
agreed to the pay rise from the onset, 
a survey has been distributed to Coles 
employees on whether the increase 
should also apply from the same date.

As we go to print, just under 250 had 
responded with 100% voting YES to the 
increase.

Coles members received their last 
increase on 5 October 2020.

Jobkeeper 2.0?
With the protracted lockdowns in New 
South Wales and Victoria, and the rest 
of the country re-opening in the next 
few months leading to inevitable Covid 
outbreaks, the Morrison Government 
must introduce some new form of 
support to enable workers to put food 
on the table and to protect them in the 
case of targeted lockdowns (as per the 
National Plan).

While the Morrison Government seems 
to think that providing support in these 
cases will encourage lockdowns, the 
fact remains that workers may need it – 
including in Tasmania.

Nearly 15,000 people have returned 
to Tasmania from Victoria since 8 July 
and we have had some close calls with 
infected arrivals bringing Covid with 
them. 

This risk will only increase as Australia 
opens up.
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covered by the General Retail Industry 
Award, did not receive the increase 
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Another 21 Awards were pushed out 
further, including the Hospitality and 
Restaurant Awards, Fitness, Hair and 
Beauty and Models Awards, and will not 
receive the increase until 1 November 
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workers continuing to be at the fore, 
the National Secretary has called on 
employers to implement the increase 
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Woolworths Supermarkets and Big W 
agreed in mid June to implement the 
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25 June, Dan Murphy’s and BWS 
advised that they had brought forward 
the increase to the same date as other 
brands within the group.

As Woolworths and its brands have 
agreed to the pay rise from the onset, 
a survey has been distributed to Coles 
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should also apply from the same date.

As we go to print, just under 250 had 
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With the protracted lockdowns in New 
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support to enable workers to put food 
on the table and to protect them in the 
case of targeted lockdowns (as per the 
National Plan).

While the Morrison Government seems 
to think that providing support in these 
cases will encourage lockdowns, the 
fact remains that workers may need it – 
including in Tasmania.

Nearly 15,000 people have returned 
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infected arrivals bringing Covid with 
them. 

This risk will only increase as Australia 
opens up.

superannuation increase
On 1 July, your employer 
superannuation payment rose by 
0.5% to 10% in accordance with the 
Superannuation Guarantee (SG) rate.

The SG rate determines the amount of 
money your employer has to pay into 
your super account as a percentage of 
your ordinary-time earnings (OTE).

Other changes scheduled for 2021 
include your super ‘following you’ if 
you change jobs, as well as greater 
transparency about how your 
retirement savings are invested.

sexual harassment  
in the worKplace
A National Inquiry into sexual 
harassment in the workplace was 
commissioned by the Federal 
Government in 2018 and carried out by 
the Sex Discrimination Commissioner, 
Kate Jenkins which evolved into the 
Respect@Work Report.

In leading this Government reform, a 
taskforce was to deliver legislative and 
regulatory reform as well as simplify 
and strengthen the legal framework, 
existing rights, and obligations for 
employers and employees.

It was also to ensure there co-
ordination between agencies and 
services so that workers and employers 
have access to consistent information.

This Roadmap for Respect is designed 
to complement existing work under 
the current National Plan to reduce 
violence against women and their 
children, and ensure it coincides with 
the development with the next National 
Plan.

The Roadmap for Respect was to 
provide a clear path for action to 
achieve meaningful cultural change 

across the nation and to create safer 
workplaces for all Australians.

However, the Government voted down 
key recommendations of the Respect@ 
Work Report that would have improved 
safety for women in workplaces.

These recommendations, put forward 
by Labor and the Greens, included:

u The introduction of universal 10 days 
paid family and violence leave in the 
National Employment Standards;

u A positive duty on employers to take 
reasonable steps to prevent sexual 
harassment in the workplace;

u Expressly prohibiting sexual 
harassment, and introducing an easy 
process to lodge a complaint in the 
Fair Work Act; and

u Extensive powers for the Sex 
Discrimination Commissioner to 
investigate enquiries.

The Sex Discrimination Commissioner 
herself joined with the ACTU in 
supporting the above recommendations 
and called on the Morrison Government 
to act on all the recommendations in 
the Report.

ACTU President Michele O’Neil said: 
“The Morrison Government failed to 
address a systemic issue which affects 
millions of people every year. 

“Two in five women and one in four 
men have experienced, and will 
continue to experience, workplace 
sexual harassment.”

This is a sorely missed opportunity and 
by voting down the recommendations, 
the Federal Government, with the 
support of Pauline Hanson’s One Nation 
Party, continues to ensure that the 
burden is still on individual women to 
resolve matters of sexual harassment 
and violence in the workplace.



in
d

us
tr

ia
l r

e
la

ti
o

ns

we need to tackle insecure employment
In 2018, after persistent campaigning by unions including the 

SDA, the Fair Work Commission granted casuals the right to 

request a move into permanent employment when they have 

at least 12 months of continuous service and work a regular 

pattern of hours. 

There is still much to be done to improve rights for casuals 

and to increase permanent hours for part-timers. 

we need to fix this
Increasing permanent part-time hours and improving casual 

conversion rights will be a key focus for the SDA as we seek to 

participate in the Secure Jobs campaign, and we encourage 

as many members as possible to get involved. 

The Australian Council of Trade Unions will be working closely 

with unions, including the SDA, to ensure that the campaign 

message is embedded in workplaces and continues to spur 

people to think about how these issues affect them and those 

around them, including their families.

Australians expect their government to build an economy that 

works for everyone. Despite this, more and more Australians 

are in insecure work.

Like the Change The Rules campaign in 2019, we will seek to 

campaign on the issues around insecure work, encouraging 

people to consider these issues when they decide who they 

want to vote for at the next Federal Election.

The problems we are facing are a direct result of cuts to the 

rights of working people. Many workers have watched as 

good, secure jobs left their communities, only to be replaced 

with low-wage, precarious work – or no work at all.

Stay tuned for more information in the coming weeks and 

months about what you can do to get involved. 

Australia used to be the envy of the world when it came to stable reliable jobs 

that you could plan and build your life around. 

We now have one of the highest rates of precarious employment in the 

OECD.

an explosion in casual work
More than one 1 in 4 Australian workers are now  

casuals in insecure work, without access to sick leave  

or annual leave. 

In 2019, for the first time, permanent full-time workers made up 

less than 50% of the workforce. The growth in casual work since 

May 2020 has been the fastest in our history, with 58% of all new jobs 

being designated as casual.  

This has been a key driver of low wage growth. Insecure work also drives 

inequity for women, retirement incomes and young workers. 

Millions of people cannot find enough work – if they can find a job at all. 

Wage growth is at record lows and the gender-based pay gap is still stubbornly 

high.

it affects all of us
We have also seen how insecure work with inadequate hours and training 

became a significant contributor to the spread of COvID-19 in victorian 

workplaces over the last 18 months, with people working multiple 

jobs to make ends meet during the pandemic. 

Many Australian workers across a vast number of 

industries, particularly part-timers and casuals, 

now have fewer rights and have seen their 

wages stagnate while the cost of living 

increases substantially. Compounding this, 

the inability to get enough hours is an all-too 

familiar story. 

Wage theft is rampant, and some 

employers are shifting risk to workers, with 

excessive use of casual and fixed-term 

contracts, sham contracts, and gig work.

Having access to secure work is 

connected to so many fundamental 

things like mental health, a healthy 

lifestyle, and life and family planning. 

The absence of stable and secure 

employment also means that 

people have less money to spend 

in local businesses which affects 

the local economy. 
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1 in 4 workers are 
now classified as 

casuals.

we need to tackle insecure employment
In 2018, after persistent campaigning by unions including the 

SDA, the Fair Work Commission granted casuals the right to 

request a move into permanent employment when they have 
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pattern of hours. 

There is still much to be done to improve rights for casuals 

and to increase permanent hours for part-timers. 
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participate in the Secure Jobs campaign, and we encourage 

as many members as possible to get involved. 

The Australian Council of Trade Unions will be working closely 

with unions, including the SDA, to ensure that the campaign 

message is embedded in workplaces and continues to spur 

people to think about how these issues affect them and those 

around them, including their families.

Australians expect their government to build an economy that 

works for everyone. Despite this, more and more Australians 

are in insecure work.

Like the Change The Rules campaign in 2019, we will seek to 

campaign on the issues around insecure work, encouraging 

people to consider these issues when they decide who they 

want to vote for at the next Federal Election.

The problems we are facing are a direct result of cuts to the 

rights of working people. Many workers have watched as 

good, secure jobs left their communities, only to be replaced 

with low-wage, precarious work – or no work at all.

Stay tuned for more information in the coming weeks and 

months about what you can do to get involved. 

insecure work facts

Casual workers are three 

times more likely to have 

their pay set at minimum 

award rates than permanent 

full-time workers.

In 2019, for the first time, 

permanent full-time workers 

made up less than 50% of the 

Australian workforce.

securejobs.org.au
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Australia used to be the envy of the world when it came to stable reliable jobs 

that you could plan and build your life around. 

We now have one of the highest rates of precarious employment in the 

OECD.

an explosion in casual work
More than one 1 in 4 Australian workers are now  

casuals in insecure work, without access to sick leave  

or annual leave. 

In 2019, for the first time, permanent full-time workers made up 

less than 50% of the workforce. The growth in casual work since 

May 2020 has been the fastest in our history, with 58% of all new jobs 

being designated as casual.  

This has been a key driver of low wage growth. Insecure work also drives 

inequity for women, retirement incomes and young workers. 

Millions of people cannot find enough work – if they can find a job at all. 

Wage growth is at record lows and the gender-based pay gap is still stubbornly 

high.

it affects all of us
We have also seen how insecure work with inadequate hours and training 

became a significant contributor to the spread of COvID-19 in victorian 

workplaces over the last 18 months, with people working multiple 

jobs to make ends meet during the pandemic. 

Many Australian workers across a vast number of 

industries, particularly part-timers and casuals, 

now have fewer rights and have seen their 

wages stagnate while the cost of living 

increases substantially. Compounding this, 

the inability to get enough hours is an all-too 

familiar story. 

Wage theft is rampant, and some 

employers are shifting risk to workers, with 

excessive use of casual and fixed-term 

contracts, sham contracts, and gig work.

Having access to secure work is 

connected to so many fundamental 

things like mental health, a healthy 

lifestyle, and life and family planning. 

The absence of stable and secure 

employment also means that 

people have less money to spend 

in local businesses which affects 

the local economy. 
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E-MAIL! 

One lucky member will win a Weber Family Q  
Q3100 LP Black BBQ with cover, valued at $789!

This great LP gas-powered portable barbecue has a sleek design, and includes a single 

spark igniter, a stainless steel burner, a cast alloy lid and bowl, a drizzle collector to keep 

your meals healthy, and thick porcelain coating to make it easier to clean. 

To enter... 
Simply e-mail us at membership@sdatas.asn.au  

by 26 November 2021 with  

the subject line “Weber BBQ”. 

Make sure you include your full name, SDA membership number, home address,  

contact phone number and employer/location in the body of your e-mail  

so we know who you are!

No internet access? No problem! 
Just phone us on 1300 152 851 and we’ll enter you into the competition.

These three members 

were the lucky winners 

of Fitbit Inspire HR 

Fitness Trackers in our 

Winter competition.

We hope you enjoy your 

prizes!

Our Winter 
Winners

Helen Abbott, Becks 

Mitre 10 Ulverstone

Noni Jordan, 

Woolworths Wynyard

Natasha Vanderkooij,  

Big W Kingston



You could win a 
Weber BBQ
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One lucky member will win a Weber Family Q  
Q3100 LP Black BBQ with cover,valued at $789!

This great LP gas-powered portable barbecue has a sleek design, and includes a single 

spark igniter, a stainless steel burner, a cast alloy lid and bowl, a drizzle collector to keep 

your meals healthy, and thick porcelain coating to make it easier to clean. 

To enter... 
Simply e-mail us at membership@sdatas.asn.au  

by 26 November 2021 with  

the subject line “Weber BBQ”. 

Make sure you include your full name, SDA membership number, home address,  

contact phone number and employer/location in the body of your e-mail  

so we know who you are!

No internet access? No problem! 
Just phone us on 1300 152 851 and we’ll enter you into the competition.

These three members 

were the lucky winners 

of Fitbit Inspire HR 

Fitness Trackers in our 

Winter competition.

We hope you enjoy your 

prizes!

Our Winter 
Winners Top of the Tipping!

We had two overall 

winners of our 2021 footy 

tipping competition: 

Wesley Parker (pictured 

here) from Woolworths 

Wellington Street, and 

Ronda Post, from EG Fuel 

Prospect.

Due to COVID-19 

and border closures, 

winners were awarded 

a voucher for travel 

and accommodation in 

Tasmania. 

Congratulations to you 

both!

Another strange footy season has come to a close, along with this year’s 

footy tipping comp. Each of these top tipsters received a double movie pass. 

Congratulations to all of you on your outstanding tipping, especially in this 

particularly tricky season. Here’s hoping that season 2022 is a lot closer to 

normal than the 2020 and 2021 seasons were!

R1 Leesa Long, Coles Bridgewater 

R2 Gemma James,  

 Woolworths Scottsdale 

R3 Emily Maxwell, Coles Ulverstone 

R4 Helen Abbott, Becks Ulverstone

R5 Rachel Stanley,  

 Woolworths Wellington Street

R6 Julie-Anne Harvey,  

 Woolworths New Town 

R7 Regeena Hogarth,  

 Woolworths Kings Meadows 

R8 Shelley Pyke,  

 Woolworths Eastlands 

R9 Benjamin Milner,  

 Woolworths Prospect 

R10 Melissa Wylie, Woolworths Sorell 

R11 Brendan Jones,  

 Woolworths Deloraine 

R12 Coralea Midgley,  

 Bunnings Glenorchy 

Our Round-by-Round Top Tipsters
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R13 Clare Arnold,  

 Harris Scarfe Launceston 

R14 Melissa Kelt,  

 Woolworths Kingston 

R15 Wesley Parker,  

 Woolworths Wellington Street

R16 Laura Batham, Kmart Devonport 

R17 Helen Milner,  

 Coles Kings Meadows 

R18 Adam Donohue,  

 Haymes Paints Launceston 

R19  Adam Maxwell, Coles Ulverstone 

R20  Lyndal Martin, Bunnings Burnie

R21  Cathy Kennedy, KFC Claremont 

R22 Christy Delphin,  

 Coles Charles St Launceston 

R23 Wesley Parker,  

 Woolworths Wellington Street

Helen Abbott, Becks 

Mitre 10 Ulverstone

Noni Jordan, 

Woolworths Wynyard

Natasha Vanderkooij,  

Big W Kingston



For many years, the SDA has been providing Educational Scholarship vouchers,  

each worth $120, for members and their children. These scholarships can be used  

to purchase school requisites such as textbooks and stationery.

With the ever-increasing cost of education and the need for higher qualifications,  

this assistance is now more important than ever.

Who can apply? 
SDA members and their dependent children who are students at any level of study.

Where the vouchers can be redeemed 
u Any Officeworks store; 
u Area 52, 104 Elizabeth Street, Hobart; 
u Not Just Books Burnie, 52 Wilson Street, Burnie;
u Not Just Books Hobart, FF4, The Cat and The Fiddle Arcade,  

    60-61 Elizabeth Street, Hobart;

u Stories Bookshop, Launceston (email or phone orders only),  

    phone 6319 1109 or email info@storiesbookshop.com. You may browse on  

    their website at storiesbookshop.com, but please note you will have to place  

    your order by email or phone, quoting your voucher details.

voucher’s expiry date?
Vouchers must be used by 31 March 2022.

hoW they are allocated? 
Winners are selected by ballot.

hoW Winners are notified 
If you are one of the 600 successful applicants, you will be advised 

in writing or by personal contact after applications close.

2021/2022  
sda educational 
scholarships

vouchers Will be mailed to successful applicants from 1 January 2022 – no exceptions!
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600 to 
give 
aWay!

Worth $120 each

 
hoW to apply 
Go to sdatas.asn.au, hover over the  

‘Members Area’ drop down menu and select  

‘Educational Scholarships’ by 26 November 2021. 

If you’re not already registered on the website,  

you’ll need to complete the ‘New User Registration’ section.

Make sure you fill in ALL the details, in particular your  

SDA membership number. You can apply once only.

no internet? no problem! 
Just call us on 1300 152 851 and we'll help you to apply!

apply online noW!
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by andrew coyle, 
north west 
organiser

unions win wage increase 
for essential workers

Thank you for supporting the SDA’s campaign for a pay rise for essential 
workers.

By supporting our campaign, you have helped deliver the 2.5% wage 
increase for millions of workers across the country – despite employer 
lobby groups doing their best to stop it. 

Our essential pay rise petition had over 9.2k supporters and helped the 
SDA and Australian Unions demonstrate why essential workers deserve 
this pay rise.

This union win is a clear example of how important it is to stand to 
together to campaign for better pay and conditions in your workplace.

On 16 June 2021, the Annual Wage 
Review decision was handed down 
by the Fair Work Commission (FWC).

After months of campaigning, the 
SDA welcomed the Commission’s 
decision to increase wages for 
Australia’s lowest-paid workers by 2.5 
percent – a rise of $20.70 per week 
for retail employees.

An increase of this size, despite the 
precedent set in 2020, was achieved 
through the hard work of the union 
movement and union members 
across the country who deserved a 
fair and decent pay rise.

Unions had to contend with some 
business lobby groups who actively 
demanded a zero increase to 
the minimum wage as well as an 

apathetic Federal Government 
that provided no support to the 
millions of Australians who depend 
on the minimum wage to support 
themselves and their families. 

Unfortunately, the Commission 
again unfairly decided to delay 
the increase for retail workers 
until 1 September this year. This 
is unacceptable and the SDA has 
been pushing for every major retail 
employer to pay this increase and 
backpay it from 1 July to compensate 
the time lost. 

Some employers did the right thing 
and paid the 2.5% increase to 
employees on 1 July, including:

u Woolworths Supermarkets

u Big W

u Dan Murphy’s

u BWS

u EG Fuels

u David Jones

Thank you!

With many major retailers and 

supermarket chains recording record 

profits, there is no justification for 

those that are delaying the increase 

for retail employees for two months 

at a time when the retail sector is 

outpacing financial forecasts.

Another delay is no reward for 

essential frontline retail workers 

who suffered a real wage cut as 

they risked their health and safety 

throughout the depths of the 

pandemic to make sure the rest of 

the community could buy food and 

the other essentials of life.

There is no benefit to delaying 

important and necessary wage 

increases for all Australian workers. 

Australians need their wages to keep 

up with the rising cost of living so 

that we can spend money, stimulate 

the economy, and begin to remedy 

the economic damage sustained 

during the pandemic. 

standing together gets results!
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NILS is the clever choice for getting a new fridge or 
laptop, having your car repaired and more!

You only pay back what you borrow. No fees, no 
charges, no interest. Nothing extra.

The NILS concept was developed by Good Shepherd 
and operates across Australia. 

Their community lending started in Tasmania in 
2002, when the NILS (No Interest Loans) Network of 
Tasmania Inc. was first established.

NILS loans are accessed through a wide range of 
community access points provided by their 76 Delivery 
Partners and over 350 volunteers across Tasmania. 

How is NILS different?

 NILS provides efficient loan delivery and systems to 
provide a real alternative to exploitative lending.

 They work towards Tasmanians gaining financial 
confidence through accessing and repaying their 
loans.

 They maintain and enhance the community access 
points of our network to provide true community 
connected lending.

 NILS is a strong and respected advocate for fair and 
equitable lending for low-income Tasmanians.

no interest
no fees or 
charges
no credit 
checks
no worries

nilstasmania.org.au
Ph: 1300 301 650

The No Interest Loan 
Scheme

For more information, 
visit the NILS website, 
phone NILS,  
or scan this  
QR code!
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mental health checkup
Following two instances of mental health issues in the nightfill division at Coles Burnie, 

the SDA responded to our members’ needs and on Thursday evening, 16 September, 

SDA Organiser Joel Tynan held a mental health and wellbeing presentation for nightfill 

members.

If any members are experiencing mental health and wellbeing issues, there are a number of 

organisations that may be able to help. See the back cover of this edition of TasTalk for details 

of who’s out there to help you.
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news 
roundup

Samuel GetS a Break!
18-year-old SDA member Samuel Piper, from Coles Charles Street 

recently received $700 under the Union’s free accident insurance 

scheme after breaking his leg. 

Both Samuel, and his parents appreciated the assistance, with his 

mother Lauri emailing us to say thank you:

Hi guys,

Just a note to say thank you very much for Sam’s insurance payment. 

It’s going to help him out quite a bit while he’s off work with his 

broken leg. 

Your accident and broken bone insurance is a great bonus for 

everyone in the union.

Thanks again,

The Piper family.

So don’t forget – if you’re unlucky enough to suffer an injury  

outside of work, as a member you’re automatically covered by  

our free accident insurance!



2021
tasmanian PUBLiC HOLiDaYs

EvEnt 2021 DatE
New Year’s Day Friday 1 January

Australia Day Tuesday 26 January

Royal Hobart 

Regatta

Second Monday in February. (South of & including 

Oatlands and Swansea excluding Bronte Park, Catagunya, 

Strathgordon, Tarraleah, Wayatinah & West Coast.) 

Monday 8 February

Eight Hours Day Second Monday in March Monday 8 March

Good Friday Friday 2 April

Easter Monday Monday 5 April

Easter Tuesday Restricted public holiday, currently observed by certain 

Awards/Agreements and the State public service.

Tuesday 6 April

Anzac Day Sunday 25 April

Queen’s Birthday Second Monday in June each year. Monday 14 June

Burnie Show Day Friday before first Saturday in October each year. 

(Municipal areas of Burnie, Waratah-Wynyard and  

West Coast.)

Friday 1 October

Royal Launceston  

Show Day

Thursday before the second Saturday in October. 

(Municipal areas of Break O’Day, Dorset, George Town, 

Launceston, Meander Valley, Northern Midlands, West 

Tamar.)

Thursday 7 October

Hobart Show Day Thursday before the fourth Saturday in October.  

(All of Tasmania south of and including Oatlands and 

Swansea also Bronte Park, Strathgordon, Tarreleah and 

Wayatinah - excludes West Coast.)

Thursday 21 October

Recreation Day First Monday in November. (All parts of Tasmania  

which do not observe Royal Hobart Regatta.)

Monday 1 November

Devonport  

Show Day

Friday nearest the last day in November but not later  

than 1 December. (Municipal areas of Devonport,  

Kentish and Latrobe.)

Friday 26 November

Christmas Day As Christmas Day falls on a Saturday in 2021, then  

both the Saturday and the Monday following are 

holidays.

Saturday  

25 December

Monday 

27 December

Boxing Day As Boxing Day falls on a Sunday, the following  

Tuesday is observed.

Tuesday 28 December
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rolling out the secure jobs campaign
The ACTU and its affiliate, Unions Tasmania, implemented the Secure Jobs – Worth Fighting For campaign (see pages 

6-7 for more details) across the two marginal seats of Bass and Braddon during August and early September.

Thirty five Organisers from unions affiliated to the Labor Council attended education and training sessions to tackle 

job insecurity and casualisation within our industry at the Secure Jobs – Worth Fighting For campaign launch.

Culminating from the training sessions, blitzes were carried out across the two regions in Launceston, Devonport and 

Burnie.

Reports have been released, in particular from the Productivity Commission, which make it clear that living standards 

for workers are on the decline, meaning that workers in the lower-paid industries are struggling to make ends meet.

It is important the Government invests in policies that sustain secure work in order that workers are able to live on the 

wages they receive, as well as to save for the future.

In Tasmania, our State has avoided lockdowns, and retail, fast food and warehouse employees have been to the fore in 

keeping food on the table to support our communities.

news 
roundup
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be smart on social media
Be careful what you say on Facebook, Instagram and other social media. 

Comments on social media (including other people’s posts or pages) are regarded as  

public comments – they are not private.

Avoid negative comments about your company, your manager or other employees on  

social media. Some members have come to us after “official warnings” or worse following  

unwise comments on social media. It’s best not to mention your employer at all.

Be smart. When you go home, leave work behind you. 

Enjoy your social media for your social life, not your work life.



Product issued by Retail Employees Superannuation Pty Limited ABN 39 001 987 739 as trustee of Retail 
Employees Superannuation Trust ABN 62 653 671 394. Consider if it is appropriate for you and read the  PDS 
available at rest.com.au/pds before deciding to join or stay. 

Start today and
make 2021 the Year of Your Super Self

Here are 3 ways we think you could 
get more out of your super

go.rest.com.au/new-year-new-start

Learn more about your 
investment options, in 
your own time, at your 

own pace via our 
learning centre

 

Complete our super 
self-assessment in 5 

minutes and 7 questions, 
on the Rest App  

Avoid paying multiple fees 
by combining your funds 
into one super account

Super Savvy Super SmartSuper Connected

Make this year,
your year!
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organIser

It’s tIme to get vaccInated!

Our retail, warehousing and fast food 

workers have formed a critical part of 

Australia’s response to the pandemic 

and should have access to the vaccine 

as early as appropriately possible.

The SDA has been working extensively 

to ensure Australia’s retail, warehouse 

and fast food workers receive 

priority access to vaccines so they 

are protected from the virus and 

the financial implications that can 

occur when subjected to lockdown or 

isolation. 

The SDA has been engaging both 

State Governments and the Federal 

Government about priority access to 

vaccines.

The SDA has worked with the 

Australian Retailers Association and 

the National Retail Association to call 

for frontline retail, warehouse and fast 

food workers to be prioritised in the 

vaccine roll out.

As the virus continues to spread, and 

lockdown orders remain in several 

States, it is imperative that the 

Government heeds our calls.

Analysis of exposure sites has found 

that shops and shopping centres are 

the most commonly listed sites, and 

of course these remain open during 

lockdowns so people can purchase 

essential items.

This means that both workers and 

shoppers face risk of infection if they 

work in or visit a retail or fast food 

outlet.

SDA members do not have the luxury 

of working from home – coming face 

to face with customers every day is 

the essential work they do.

The Union has advocated for vaccine 

priority for essential retail, warehouse 

and fast food workers since the 

beginning of the national rollout. 

It has also become clear the 

importance of adequate vaccine 

access for those working in 

distribution centres and warehouses.

After a very slow start, vaccinations 

have now become more readily 

available to members of the 

community, including retail, fast food 

and warehouse workers.

New types of vaccines, suitable for 

various age groups are becoming 

available as time goes on.

We encourage all our members to get 

the jab as soon as possible to protects 

themselves, their families, their 

friends and their customers.

PaId vaccInatIon Leave 
The SDA has been calling on all 

employers to provide paid vaccination 

leave for their workers, so no one has 

to choose between getting paid and 

getting vaccinated.

The Union has already seen several 

employers announce paid vaccination 

leave. We thank the following 

companies:

  Officeworks 

  Bunnings

  Kmart 

  Target

  Woolworths 

  Big W

  Dan Murphy’s 

  BWS

  Taco Bell 

  Costco 

  ALDI  

  Many KFC franchisees

Each company’s vaccine leave policy is 

different, so it’s important for you to 

check with your employer about what 

applies in your workplace. 

The SDA will continue to encourage 

employers to follow the example 

set by these companies and provide 

additional paid vaccination leave for 

their workers. 

No one should have to lose pay or use 

their accrued entitlements in order to 

receive their vaccinations.

for InformatIon on 
eLIgIbILIty, bookIng 
your covId vaccIne 

aPPoIntment, and/or  
to book onLIne,  

Just scan thIs code!



Managers 
– keep out 
of medical 
appointments!
All SDA members should be 
aware that managers and 

insurance companies have no right to attend your medical 
appointments, even if it is for a work-related injury. This is 
supported by the Fair Work Ombudsman.
Medical appointments are private. Tell any manager 
or insurance company representative that they are not 
entitled to attend. 
Contact the SDA if you need any help.

Amanda Knapek  
at Coles Glenorchy
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Abbey Bentley and Amber Busscher  

at Coles Burnie

Antonia Rogers, Ishan Wickramathnnga and  

Taleesha Kennedy at Dan Murphy’s Hobart

Neil Barker, SDA member for  36 years, at Woolworths  
New Town. Well done, Neil! 

Gabby Kent, Di Franklin (who has been  
an SDA member for over 20 years) and  
Leanne Pridmore at Coles Kings Meadows

Danielle Applebee, Isabelle Wells and 

Katrina Ralston at Coles Burnie
Isabelle Garham s at Woolworths Devonport

Kirby Campbell, Vanessa Williams and  

Hayley Rice at Harris Scarfe Devonport



Around the 
ShopS
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Kate Smith at Rockmans 

Kings Meadows

Abbey Bentley and Amber Busscher  

at Coles Burnie

Alison Purdon (front, centre) recently celebrated 20 years at Coles Kings Meadows. Her colleagues (Back row L-R)  Rachel Turner, Shaun Partridge, Fiona Smith, Elka Faulwetter and Rowena Wallace. (Front row) Chelsea Fensom, and  Tania McCall were more than happy to join in the celebration!

Kelly Spencer and Scott Jerums 
at Coles Kings Meadows

Isabelle Stokes at Woolworths Wynyard

With his 25 years of service at the Coles Distribution Centre in 

Launceston, Lloyd Aldred (also shown on the front cover) joins a 

number of other long-term members at the DC. Lloyd has participated 

in negotiations of consecutive Enterprise Bargaining Agreements 

during the past quarter of a century, and his support for the SDA over 

all those years is very much appreciated.

Flanking him in this picture are SDA Delegates  

Ross Charlton and David McLean.



My manager doesn’t care that l’m a single mother and that my girls have to 

hang around outside the school for 1 hour and 10 minutes for me to pick 

them up. She also didn’t care when she changed my roster and my daughters 

couldn’t see their psychologist any more... and she didn’t care that my girls 

had to give up their sports… This has affected mine and my girls’ mental 

health and it affects our daily lives. Our lives are very stressful because of my 

work hours and my girls suffer because they only have me and they always 

miss out, and my boss couldn’t care less.

– Sole mother, permanent part-time

It shouldn’t be about 

working extra hours, it’s 

about the hourly rate.  

42 hours per week to 

struggle paying bills!

– Sole father and carer of  

adult with disability, 

permanent full-time

This year, the SDA commissioned 
the University of New South Wales 
(UNSW) to survey SDA members on the 
challenges faced by workers and their 
families while they try to manage their 
employment and caring responsibilities. 

In total, an incredible 6,469 SDA 
members completed the survey.

The final report Challenges of work, 
family and care for Australia’s retail, 
online retail, warehousing and fast-food 
workers was launched in September.

a balancing act
The relationship between work 
and care is important, as many SDA 
members make valuable contributions 
through the unpaid labour they 
provide as parents, and as carers, to 
children and adults in their families and 
communities. 

Through the pandemic, retail, fast 
food and warehouse workers have also 
been recognised for their essential 
contributions to the community, as they 
continued to ensure that everyone had 
access to necessities.

Yet recognition of their essential 
work and the care they provide is 
not reflected in their employment 
conditions and support. 

The report found that SDA members 
lack access to the stable and 
predictable working conditions needed 
to provide care to children and adults, 
and to manage work and family 
commitments. 

the Findings 
It is clear that changes need to be made 
to industrial relations settings, the 
policies of workplaces and to Australia’s 
childcare system to make caring and 
working easier for SDA members and 
other Australian workers. 

Many SDA members have contributed 
years – and sometime decades – of 
service to their employers, yet their 
working arrangements continue to be 

characterised by short, fluctuating 
hours, and precarious shifts. This 
impacts on mental health, constrains 
opportunities to provide care, 
limits opportunities for families to 
spend time together, and impacts 
on financial stability (making things 
like getting access to a mortgage 
difficult). 

The data shows that: 
u SDA members lack genuine 

choice in their working times 
and childcare arrangements 
and require better support 
structures, including access to 
childcare services that recognise 
their needs, to ensure they have 
meaningful opportunities to shape 
their working and caring lives. 

u Industrial relations settings and 
employer practices limit the 
choices and opportunities available 
to SDA members. Rostering is too 
unpredictable, and changes so 
frequently that important caring 
responsibilities cannot adequately 
be met. 

u The way work is organised 
exacerbates difficulties faced by 
workers who need to organise 
their work and family lives and 
find time for care. This impacts 
on SDA members providing care 
for the elderly, the disabled and 
children. Many SDA members 
cannot access early education 
for their children and have 
constrained opportunities to 
fully participate in other aspects 
of social and community life. 

the numbers
55% of all participants said they 
regularly provide some form of 
care to another person, such as 
care to a child, grandchild, or to 
an older person, or a person with 
a disability or long-term health 
condition. 

This includes 39% who provide 
care to a child or young person 
under 18 (either in or outside their 
household) and 30% of survey 
participants were parents with a 
child under 18. 

I can’t use childcare until I 

have more regular work to 

accommodate childcare.

      – Partnered mother, casual

It was hard to jump straight back into full-time work [while] juggling a 

sick baby. No sick leave entitlements… was hard. I was made to feel like 

I had to get straight back into it full force or they would find someone to 

replace me.

– Partnered mother of child with disability, permanent part-time

I’m a single mother 

that gets no child 

support and live 

week-to-week on 

my wages.

– Sole mother of 

child with disability, 

permanent full-time

juggling your work and family responsibilities
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by Carol wadley, 
women’s offiCer



It shouldn’t be about 

working extra hours, it’s 

about the hourly rate.  

42 hours per week to 

struggle paying bills!

– Sole father and carer of  

adult with disability, 

permanent full-time

characterised by short, fluctuating 
hours, and precarious shifts. This 
impacts on mental health, constrains 
opportunities to provide care, 
limits opportunities for families to 
spend time together, and impacts 
on financial stability (making things 
like getting access to a mortgage 
difficult). 

The data shows that: 
u SDA members lack genuine 

choice in their working times 
and childcare arrangements 
and require better support 
structures, including access to 
childcare services that recognise 
their needs, to ensure they have 
meaningful opportunities to shape 
their working and caring lives. 

u Industrial relations settings and 
employer practices limit the 
choices and opportunities available 
to SDA members. Rostering is too 
unpredictable, and changes so 
frequently that important caring 
responsibilities cannot adequately 
be met. 

Australia (ABS) SDA survey 
participants

Care for an older person or 
person with disability. 

 
11%

 
24%

Sole parents 14% of families 25% of parents
Parent of a child with a 
disability

7.7% (children <15  
with a disability) 

16% (child <18  
with a disability)

Young carers ( <25, provide 
regular care to elderly, person 
with disability)

 
 

5.6%

 
 

13%

u The way work is organised 
exacerbates difficulties faced by 
workers who need to organise 
their work and family lives and 
find time for care. This impacts 
on SDA members providing care 
for the elderly, the disabled and 
children. Many SDA members 
cannot access early education 
for their children and have 
constrained opportunities to 
fully participate in other aspects 
of social and community life. 

The Numbers
55% of all participants said they 
regularly provide some form of 
care to another person, such as 
care to a child, grandchild, or to 
an older person, or a person with 
a disability or long-term health 
condition. 

This includes 39% who provide 
care to a child or young person 
under 18 (either in or outside their 
household) and 30% of survey 
participants were parents with a 
child under 18. 

Many SDA members work while 
providing care in challenging 
circumstances and a much higher 
proportion of SDA members do this 
than the general population (see table 
below).

where To from here?
Reform is needed in the retail, fast 
food, and warehousing industries 
to improve members’ working 
arrangements, so that workers have 
more control over their working hours 
and have predictable shifts in order 
to organise care and other aspects of 
their lives.

The research provides the Union 
with clarity and a more detailed 
understanding of the different types of 
work and care arrangements among 
SDA members – this will inform the 
work the SDA does to provide support 
and enact change moving forward. 

The SDA would like to thank each of the 
6,469 respondents that contributed to 
the research for their time. You have 
provided the Union with the valuable 
information required to ensure SDA 
members’ diverse circumstances are 
recognised and can be used to shape 
reform. 

It is very hard to find childcare on 

the weekends, evening etc. For 

people like us who do shift work, it 

is stressful to get.

– Partnered father,  

permanent full-time

It was hard to jump straight back into full-time work [while] juggling a 

sick baby. No sick leave entitlements… was hard. I was made to feel like 

I had to get straight back into it full force or they would find someone to 

replace me.

– Partnered mother of child with disability, permanent part-time

I’m a single mother 

that gets no child 

support and live 

week-to-week on 

my wages.

– Sole mother of 

child with disability, 

permanent full-time

juggling your work and family responsibilities
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I made sure [my hours] would work with my family by 

being completely transparent and upfront about my needs. 

It was perfect up until recent new management – now 

I’m constantly having to dispute my roster and my hours 

are getting cut because they can no longer work with my 

schedule. I feel like a burden, and I come home stressed 

out and exhausted. 

– Partnered mother, casual



What is sexual 
harassment?
Sexual harassment is any unwanted 

or unwelcome behaviour of a sexual 

nature that may make a person feel 

offended, humiliated or intimidated. 

The behaviour can be physical, verbal 

or visual and includes some of the 

following behaviours: 

l sexually suggestive jokes or 

comments 

l intrusive questions about a person’s 

private life or body

l unwelcome touching, hugging, 

cornering or kissing

Sexual harassment can be stopped

If you have been sexually harassed at 

work or you witness someone being 

sexually harassed, you have a range of 

options to deal with this.

Write it down

Write down incidents of sexual 

harassment as they happen. This will 

be useful if you decide to make a 

complaint, particularly if the incident/s 

occur over a period of time.

You should capture the following 

information:

l The date of the incident, including 

anything relevant that happened 

before and after.

l Where it took place.

l Who was there and whether there 

were witnesses (to the incident 

and/or anything that happened 

before and after).

l What happened and what was said 

by whom.

l Why you believe that what was said 

or done was sexual harassment.

l How the incident made you feel.

Talk to the harasser

If you feel comfortable and confident, 

you can approach the harasser and 

tell them that their behaviour is 

unacceptable and unwanted, and ask 

them to stop the behaviour.

Do not approach the harasser if you 

feel it could endanger your safety in 

any way.

Tell someone – get advice

If you are not comfortable talking to 

the harasser, or if the behaviour is 

of a criminal nature, or it continues, 

speak to someone you trust at your 

workplace about what is happening. 

What can you do if you or someone  
you work with is sexually harassed?

This can be your SDA Delegate, 

Health & Safety Representative or SDA 

Organiser, or you can contact the 

SDA for confidential advice and/or 

assistance.

Advice provided by the SDA is on a 

confidential basis, and the SDA will 

only act on your behalf in relation to a 

complaint if this is what you want and 

you authorise the Union to do so.

Make a report or complaint  

to your employer

You have a right to make a report or 

complaint if you have been sexually 

harassed at work. Your workplace 

will have a process in place for how 

to make a complaint or report. If you 

don’t feel comfortable or are unsure 

of how to make a complaint, the SDA 

can provide you with assistance with 

how to do this.

Make an external complaint

Depending on the nature of the 

harassment, there is a range of 

external options for assistance. Please 

contact the SDA for advice about 

the options available to you and to 

provide assistance throughout the 

process.

The SDA is totally committed to 

eliminating sexual harassment 

from our members’ workplaces. 

Sexual harassment is a serious 

form of sex discrimination, and 

a health and safety issue.

The SDA treats complaints of 

sexual harassment seriously and 

sympathetically, and commits 

to dealing with them promptly 

and confidentially.

The SDA will ensure, to the 

extent we are able, that 

complaints will be fully 

investigated by the employer 

in an impartial manner, and 

that the resolution is just and 

equitable.

The SDA will also act to ensure 

that all steps are taken by 

employers to prevent further 

sexual harassment from 

occurring in the workplace.

REPORTING OF  
WORKPLACE SEXUAL 

HARASSMENT
Only 13% of SDA members who  

have experienced workplace  

sexual harassment in the last  

five years made a formal report  

or complaint in relation to the  

most recent incident.

SPEAK OUT

What will  
the SDA do?

Sexual harassment 
is unacceptable
Employers, in consultation 

with the SDA, should develop, 

implement and monitor 

appropriate and effective 

sexual harassment policies, 

procedures and preventative 

measures to ensure that sexual 

harassment is eliminated from 

our workplaces. 

Don’t suffer in silence. If 

someone you work with 

experiences sexual harassment, 

call the SDA now. Let’s stop 

sexual harassment!
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What is sexual 
harassment?
Sexual harassment is any unwanted 

or unwelcome behaviour of a sexual 

nature that may make a person feel 

offended, humiliated or intimidated. 

The behaviour can be physical, verbal 

or visual and includes some of the 

following behaviours: 

l sexually suggestive jokes or 

comments 

l intrusive questions about a person’s 

private life or body

l unwelcome touching, hugging, 

cornering or kissing

l inappropriate staring or leering

l inappropriate physical contact

l insults or taunts based on gender  

or sexual preference

l unwanted invitations to go out on 

dates or requests for sex

l sharing or communicating content 

of a sexual nature via text, email, 

online, social media or other 

technology

Sexual harassment can be perpetrated 

by anyone in your workplace, including 

a co-worker, more senior co-worker, 

supervisor or manager, or anyone else 

who comes into your workplace such 

as a customer or contractor.

Even if you are not the target of 

the sexual behaviour, you may also 

experience sexual harassment if you 

witness or are exposed to the sexual 

harassment of another person.

Sexual harassment at work is unlawful 

and some types of sexual harassment 

may also be criminal offences. Sexual 

harassment is also a work health and 

safety issue.

Sexual harassment can happen 

to anyone, but the SDA’s surveys 

show that female members are 

much more likely to experience 

sexual harassment.

What can you do if you or someone  
you work with is sexually harassed?

This can be your SDA Delegate, 

Health & Safety Representative or SDA 

Organiser, or you can contact the 

SDA for confidential advice and/or 

assistance.

Advice provided by the SDA is on a 

confidential basis, and the SDA will 

only act on your behalf in relation to a 

complaint if this is what you want and 

you authorise the Union to do so.

Make a report or complaint  

to your employer

You have a right to make a report or 

complaint if you have been sexually 

harassed at work. Your workplace 

will have a process in place for how 

to make a complaint or report. If you 

don’t feel comfortable or are unsure 

of how to make a complaint, the SDA 

can provide you with assistance with 

how to do this.

Make an external complaint

Depending on the nature of the 

harassment, there is a range of 

external options for assistance. Please 

contact the SDA for advice about 

the options available to you and to 

provide assistance throughout the 

process.

REPORTING OF  
WORKPLACE SEXUAL 

HARASSMENT
Only 13% of SDA members who  

have experienced workplace  

sexual harassment in the last  

five years made a formal report  

or complaint in relation to the  

most recent incident.

39%

prevalence of 
workplace sexual 
harassment

In the last five years, 39% of SDA 

members said that they have been 

sexually harassed at work.

Female SDA members (46%) 

were more likely than their 

male colleagues (29%) to have 

experienced workplace harassment.

sexual harassment by customers

21% of SDA members said they have been sexually harassed 

by a customer in their current job.

Customers were the harassers in 36% of workplace sexual 

harassment cases.

Of SDA members who had been sexually harassed by a 

customer:

u 75% had experienced this more than once.

u 54% had experienced this in the previous six months.

SOURCE: EvEryonE’s BusinEss: survEy on sExual HarassmEnt of mEmBErs of tHE sDa 2019
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about the national  
breast cancer foundation

The National Breast Cancer Foundation 

(NBCF) is the only national body that 

funds game-changing breast cancer 

research with money raised entirely by the 

Australian public. Breast cancer is the most 

common cancer in Australia, with eight 

women dying from the disease each day.

Research is the only way to prevent 

deaths and improve how breast cancer 

is diagnosed, managed and treated. By 

funding only world-class research, NBCF 

is working towards a goal of zero deaths 

from breast cancer by 2030. 

NBCF research has helped develop better 

therapies, greater understanding of 

possible ways to stop the spread of breast 

cancer to other areas, and improved 

quality of life for patients and their families. 

Since its establishment in 1994, NBCF has 

awarded more than $90 million to around 

575 Australian-based research projects to 

improve the health and wellbeing of those 

affected by breast cancer. 

it’s simple. it’s social.  
it saves lives.

The SDA will again raise funds for the National Breast Cancer Foundation’s (NBCF) Pink Ribbon 

Breakfast. This activity will support NBCF’s goal to work towards zero deaths from breast cancer 

by 2030. 

Breast cancer is the most commonly diagnosed cancer in Australia. A staggering 1 in 7 women 

will be diagnosed with breast cancer in their lifetime. This equates to 55 Australians facing a 

diagnosis each and every day. This year, more than 3,100 women and men will lose their lives 

to breast cancer. And without research, a further 30, 000 more lives will be lost to breast cancer 

by 2030. Since its inception in 1994, NBCF has awarded more than $190 million to around 575 

research projects. In that time, the five-year survival rate for breast cancer has increased from 

76% to 91% (and rising), thanks largely to research. 

However, the pandemic has put significant pressure on funding, with 93% of NBCF-funded 

researchers saying their research will take over 12 months to recover from the impact. 

The NBCF does not receive any government funding, so your continued support is needed to 

change the statistics. With your generosity, the NBCF can continue to fund the very best breast 

cancer researchers so that they can reach their ultimate goal of Zero Deaths from breast cancer 

by 2030.

organise your pink ribbon breakfast today!
Of course, in these uncertain times, you may not be able to get together 

in person, but you can always organise an online breakfast. Just go to 

fundraise.nbcf.org.au/event/pink-ribbon-breakfast/home or scan  

this QR code to get started! 
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employment was the main contributing 
factor. Therefore, each claim will be 
assessed on its individual merits.

You are not entitled to workers 
compensation in circumstances where 
you choose to self-isolate because you 
believe you may have been exposed 
to or contracted COVID-19, or you’ve 
been advised or required to self-isolate 
by your employer or other authority.

steps for making a claim
Step 1: Get treatment plus a workers 
compensation medical certificate. 
Seek medical treatment for your illness 
and get a signed workers compensation 
medical certificate from your treating 
doctor.

Step 2: Tell your employer about your 
illness. You must tell your employer 
about your illness as soon as possible. 
You can do this in person, in writing or 
by email.

Step 3: Your right to make a workers 
compensation claim. Your employer 
must inform you of your right to make 
a workers compensation claim and 
give you a Notice of Right to Make a 
Workers Compensation Claim form 
within 14 days of you telling them 
about your illness.

Your employer must tell their insurer 
within three working days about your 
illness.

catching covid-19 at work
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by james russell, 
workcover 
officer

making a 
claim can be 
complicated.  

please contact the 
sda if you have any 

questions or  
need help.

Under the Workers Rehabilitation 
and Compensation Act 1988, a 
worker can make a claim for workers 
compensation where they have 
suffered an injury that arose out of or 
in the course of their employment; 
or contracted a disease that their 
employment contributed to by a 
substantial degree.

to make a workers compensation 
claim for covid-19
u You must be diagnosed with 

COVID-19; and

u Your employment must have 
contributed to a substantial degree. 
You should provide evidence of 
pathology testing confirming your 
diagnosis.

If you are diagnosed with COVID-19:

u Your treating medical practitioner 
should provide you with an Initial 
Workers Compensation Medical 
Certificate to that effect;

u You will need to provide 
information to support how the 
diagnosis is related to work;

u You should notify your employer 
immediately, who should provide 
you with a workers compensation 
claim form.

Your claim will then follow the normal 
claims process (outlined below) and 
be considered by your employer or 
their insurer, taking into account the 
particular circumstances and evidence 
of your claim. 

Due to the nature of viruses, it 
may be difficult to determine that 

Step 4: Get a workers compensation 
claim form: If you wish to make a 
claim, you will need to complete a 
Workers Compensation Claim Form. 
You can either download one from 
worksafe.tas.gov.au, or ask your 
employer for one. If you ask for this 
form, your employer must give you 
one and must not obstruct you.

You should usually do this within 
six months of the date of your 
diagnosis. If you decide to leave your 
employment, you must do this before 
you leave.

Step 5: Complete the claim form. 
Complete the claim form and give it 
to your employer with your Workers 
Compensation Medical Certificate 
signed by your treating doctor.

You can do this in person or by post.

what happens next
Your employer must tell their insurer 
within three working days that they 
have received your claim, and forward 
it within five working days of receiving 
it. They must start making payments 
immediately.

The insurer will then tell you and the 
employer they have received the 
claim, within 28 days.

If a decision hasn’t been made within 
28 days to accept your claim, you 
will be advised of the reasons why 
and what steps the employer/insurer 
is taking to enable them to make a 
decision.

A decision must be made within 84 
days of lodging your claim.

The insurer will give you and your 
employer information about your 
rights, roles and responsibilities during 
the workers compensation process.



26 sdatastalk

yo
ur

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

&
 b

e
ne

fi
ts

UNLOCK SAVINGS WITH YOUR SDA TAS MEMBERSHIP 
Enjoy year-round access to everyday savings and exclusive offers through your SDA Rewards Membership. 
Discover nearby offers through the mobile site or search for incredible savings across dining, takeaway, 
activities, shopping, travel and more. It’s your passport for saving on everything you love to do!

HOW TO REDEEM OFFERS USING YOUR PHONE
Please present your smartphone to redeem your offers. Visit sdatas.asn.au.

EXPLORE YOUR DEALS!
1. Login to your SDA Membership 

online sdatas.asn.au

2. Select Frequent Values icon

DINING
Enjoy exclusive savings at a huge 
range of restaurants and cafes 
in your local area and all around 
Australia and New Zealand.

TAKEAWAY
Access 2 for 1 deals and special 
offers from your favourite 
takeaway spots.

SHOPPING
Access your favourite brands and 
save on necessities at a wide range 
of popular retailers.

LOCAL SERVICES
Enjoy hundreds of offers from 
dry cleaning to car maintenance 
and so much more.

HOTELS
Up to 30% off at over 2,000 hotels, 
resorts and holiday apartments.

CAR HIRE
Enjoy exclusive rates and offers with 
one of our car hire partners.

HEALTH & BEAUTY
Indulge on luxury beauty 
services and products.

ACTIVITIES
Exclusive access & savings at major 
theme parks, attractions and more.

TRAVEL
Take advantage of our great travel 
deals as a valued member.

SAVE ON EVERYTHING YOU LOVE TO DO FIND AN OFFER 
Search for nearby deals or 
by business name, suburb, 
cuisine or category.

SELECT YOUR OFFER
Tap “Ready to Redeem’  
on your smartphone.

PRESENT YOUR OFFER
Show staff the offer on 
your smartphone when 
you are ready to pay. 

Offers correct at time of printing. For the latest listing, terms and conditons and offer details, please refer to the SDA website.

5% OFF EGIFT CARD
Purchase online

HARVEY NORMAN 
5% off Harvey Norman eGift Card

5% OFF EGIFT CARD
Purchase online

BINGE 
5% off Binge eGift Card

8% OFF EGIFT CARD
Purchase online

BONDS 
8% off Bonds eGift Card

UNLOCK SAVINGS WITH YOUR SDA TAS MEMBERSHIP 
Enjoy year-round access to everyday savings and exclusive offers through your SDA Rewards Membership. 
Discover nearby offers through the mobile site or search for incredible savings across dining, takeaway, 
activities, shopping, travel and more. It’s your passport for saving on everything you love to do!

HOW TO REDEEM OFFERS USING YOUR PHONE
Please present your smartphone to redeem your offers. Visit sdatas.asn.au.

EXPLORE YOUR DEALS!
1. Login to your SDA Membership 

online sdatas.asn.au
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Access 2 for 1 deals and special 
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Enjoy hundreds of offers from 
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and so much more.

HOTELS
Up to 30% off at over 2,000 hotels, 
resorts and holiday apartments.

CAR HIRE
Enjoy exclusive rates and offers with 
one of our car hire partners.

HEALTH & BEAUTY
Indulge on luxury beauty 
services and products.

ACTIVITIES
Exclusive access & savings at major 
theme parks, attractions and more.

TRAVEL
Take advantage of our great travel 
deals as a valued member.
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HARVEY NORMAN 
5% off Harvey Norman eGift Card

5% OFF EGIFT CARD
Purchase online

BINGE 
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8% off Bonds eGift Card
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UNLOCK SAVINGS WITH YOUR SDA TAS MEMBERSHIP 
Enjoy year-round access to everyday savings and exclusive offers through your SDA Rewards Membership. 
Discover nearby offers through the mobile site or search for incredible savings across dining, takeaway, 
activities, shopping, travel and more. It’s your passport for saving on everything you love to do!
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Please present your smartphone to redeem your offers. Visit sdatas.asn.au.
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knose
Pet Care Made Easy

DISCOUNT PET  
INSURANCE FOR  
SDA MEMBERS

AwARD-wINNINg  
PET INSURANCE DESIgNED  

wITh ThE hElP OF vETS.
SIMPlE PET INSURANCE wITh 

OPTIONAl ExTRA BENEFITS
$25,000 ANNUAl lIMIT

NO SUB lIMITS
NO ADDITIONAl ExCESS  

OR hIDDEN FEES

SAvE 5% EvERy yEAR ThAT 
yOU CONTINUAlly hOlD COvER

ChOOSE UP TO 90% BENEFIT 
PERCENTAgE

OPTION TO INClUDE ExTRA 
BENEFITS

100% AUSTRAlIAN-BASED 
SERvICE AND ClAIMS TEAMS

This offer cannot be used in conjunction with any other offer. To qualify, you must use the promotion 
code SDA. If you take out multiple policies the offer is available for each policy taken out. This is a 
promotion by Knose Financial Services Pty Ltd (ABN 38 620 795 735).  Engaging Members (ABN 

86758398756) may receive a referral fee for each person who takes up the offer of discounted pet 
insurance from Knose. For more details see the Knose Pet Insurance Financial Services Guide.

www.kNOSE.COM.AU/ 
PET-INSURANCE/SDA-TAS/

gREAT NEw BENEFIT FOR SDA MEMBERS!

28 sdatastalk

yo
ur

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

&
 b

e
ne

fi
ts



29sdatastalk

yo
ur se

rvice
s &

 b
e

ne
fits

HOBART 
6221 3499

1/61 Salamanca Place
hobart@ajtravel.com.au

LAUNCESTON 
6331 1214

44 Charles Street
launceston@ajtravel.com.au

www.ajtravel.com.au

At Andrew Jones Travel, we pride ourselves on getting to know you 
and your travel needs! 
From short breaks to great adventures, from sunny beaches to 
snowy mountains, from the moment you start planning and all  
throughout your holiday, we thrive on sharing our knowledge and 
our passion with you. Speak to us about:
• Package holidays
• Flights
• Accommodation
• Cruises 
• Transfers
• Sightseeing
• Tours
• Escorted groups from Tasmania
• Travel Insurance
• 24/7 emergency service
• Travelling Ladies Club

Dreaming of getting away?

SDA memberS get 15% off At

tfe hotelS
tfe hotels, headquartered in Australia, currently comprises 70 hotels in Australia and New Zealand  

under six brands.

And now, SDA members can receive special prices when booking at tfe hotels in Australia or New 
Zealand, including Adina, rendezvous, Vibe, travelodge, Quincy and tfe Collections (the Calile, the 

Savoy, hotel Kurunjang and the hotel britomart).

to receive your 15% discount on the best available room rates, simply go to tfehotels.com/en,  
and key in promo code TH61976.

offer applies until 31 December 2021.

tfehotels.com/en/
Just add promo code TH61976  

here, and begin your search
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HOBART 
6221 3499

1/61 Salamanca Place
hobart@ajtravel.com.au

LAUNCESTON 
6331 1214

44 Charles Street
launceston@ajtravel.com.au

www.ajtravel.com.au

At Andrew Jones Travel, we pride ourselves on getting to know you 
and your travel needs! 
From short breaks to great adventures, from sunny beaches to 
snowy mountains, from the moment you start planning and all  
throughout your holiday, we thrive on sharing our knowledge and 
our passion with you. Speak to us about:
• Package holidays
• Flights
• Accommodation
• Cruises 
• Transfers
• Sightseeing
• Tours
• Escorted groups from Tasmania
• Travel Insurance
• 24/7 emergency service
• Travelling Ladies Club

Dreaming of getting away?
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BOOK AT SDATAS.ASn.Au

Financial members of the SDA can go to the movies at  
discounted prices by purchasing tickets through the Union! 

TicKeTS are available for Village Cinemas throughout Tasmania,  
plus Metro Cinemas (Burnie).

TO OrDer... Go to sdatas.asn.au, hover over the ‘Members Area’ drop-down menu 
and select ‘Purchase Movie Tickets’. If you’re not already registered on the website, you’ll 
need to complete the ‘New User Registration’ section.

Delivery... Your tickets will be mailed to you by registered post.

nO inTerneT AcceSS? nO wOrrieS! Just call us on 1300 152 851 with your 
credit card details to order.

GREAT VALUE!

mOvie TicKeTS
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* You can use the ATO app myDeductions tool to keep track 
of your expenses and receipts throughout the year.

To claim  
a deduction  

for work- 
related  

expenses

■■ you must have spent 
the money yourself and 
weren’t reimbursed 

■■ it must be directly related 
to earning your income

■■ you must have a record  
to prove it.*

You can only claim  
the work-related part 
of expenses. You can’t 
claim a deduction 
for any part of the 
expense that relates  
to personal use.

Meal expenses

Clothing expenses

  You can claim a deduction for the cost of buying, hiring, 
mending or cleaning certain uniforms that are unique and 
distinctive to your job, or protective clothing that your employer 
requires you to wear.

  You can’t claim a deduction for the cost of buying or cleaning 
plain clothing worn at work, even if your employer tells you to 
wear it, and even if you only wear it for work, eg, black pants 
and a white shirt or everyday clothing—even if it’s sold at the 
store you work for.

  You can claim a deduction for the cost of overtime meals  
on those occasions where:

■■ you worked overtime and took an overtime meal break, and 

■■ your employer paid you an overtime meal allowance under 
an industrial law, award or agreement.

  You can’t claim a deduction for the cost of meals eaten during 
a normal working day as it is a private expense, even if you 
receive an allowance to cover the meal expense.

  You can claim a deduction when you: 

■■ drive between separate jobs on the same day – eg travelling 
to your second job as a waiter 

■■ drive to and from an alternate workplace for the same 
employer on the same day – eg driving between separate 
retail stores for the same employer. 

  You generally can’t claim the cost of trips between home  
and work, even if you live a long way from your usual workplace 
or have to work outside normal business hours – eg late night 
shopping or weekend shifts. 

If you claim car expenses, you need to keep a logbook 
to determine the work-related percentage, or be able to 
demonstrate to the ATO a reasonable calculation if you use the 
cents per kilometre method to claim.'

  You can claim a deduction for self-education expenses  
if your course relates directly to your current job, eg a customer 
service course.

  You can’t claim a deduction if your study is only related  
in a general way or is designed to help get you a new job,  
eg a health and wellbeing course.

  You can’t claim a deduction for hairdressing, cosmetics,  
hair and skin care products, even if your employer tells you  
to use them and you work in a store that sells them – they  
are personal expenses.

  As long as the expense relates to your employment,  
you can claim a deduction for the work-related portion  
of the cost of: 

■■ seminars and conferences 

■■ technical or professional  
publications 

■■ union and professional  
association fees 

■■ phone and internet usage if your  
employer needs you to use your  
personal devices for work. 

Car expenses

Self-education expenses

Personal grooming

Other common deductions

If you 

work in retail 
it pays to learn what you 
can claim at tax time

SNAP!
SAVE!
STORE

Is this partly a 
private cost?

Cost

What can you claim on your tax return?

OR100% $0.00

Date

Description

Car

Other car expenses

Yes No

Add expense

Carrier 12:34 PM 100%

SNAP!
SAVE!

STORE

$45.00

10/04/2018

Travel expenses

the shop assistant

winter 2020 13 

Still unsure about what you can claim? 

Download the ATO’s retail work-related 
expenses guide at ato.gov.au/retail21

This is a general summary only.
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GENERAL RETAIL INDUSTRY AWARD 2010 
fRom 1 SEpTEmbER 2021

 
mINImUm WAGE RATES

EffECTIVE  
1 SEpTEmbER 2021

DOES NoT APPLY TO WOOLWORTHS, COLES, 
MYER, TARGET, COUNTRY ROAD, ROCKMANS, 
BIG W, PETROL PLUS, KMART, HARRIS SCARFE, 

JUST JEANS, OFFICEWORKS, K&D WAREHOUSE, 
VEHICLE INDUSTRY, BUNNINGS HARDWARE, 

MILLERS, BETTS & BETTS, PRICELINE AND  
PRICE ATTACK, WATTYL PAINTS SPOTLIGHT  

AND FAST FOOD WORKERS
LAST WAGE INCREASE $20.70 

 
 

Ordinary Hours

38 HOUR 
WEEKLY 

RATE

7am to 9pm 
Monday to Friday

After 6pm 
Monday to Friday

7am to 6pm 
Saturday

Hourly Rate Hourly Rate Hourly Rate
Full-time 

and 
part-time 
up to 38 
hours a 
week

Casual 
loading 
of 25%

Full-time 
and 

part-time 
loading 
of 25%

Casual 
loading of 

50%  

Full-time 
and 

part-time 
loading 
of 25%

Casual 
loading  
of 50% 

17.5% 
annual 
leave 

loading 
on four 
weeks’ 
leave

RETAIL EmpLoYEE $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Level 1 
Shop Assistant, Checkout Operator, 
Trolley Collector, Video Hire Worker, LPO, 
Clerical Assistant 848.54 22.33 27.91 27.91 33.50 27.91 33.50 593.98
Level 2 
Forklift Operator 868.77 22.86 28.58 28.58 34.20 28.58 34.20 608.14
Level 3 
Dept Mngr 2IC, Corsetiere, Snr LPO, Cook 882.22 23.22 29.02 29.02 34.82 29.02 34.82 617.55
Level 4 
Trades Qualified (e.g. Butcher, Baker), 
Clerical Officer Level 2, Shiftworker/
Nightfill Supervisor 899.64 23.68 29.60 29.60 35.51 29.60 35.51 629.75
Level 5 
Tradesperson in charge of other 
Tradespersons, Services Supervisor 
(more than 15 employees) 936.56 24.65 30.81 30.81 36.98 30.81 36.98 655.60
Level 6 
Section/Dept Manager (5+ employees  
including self), Clerical Officer Level 3,  
Assistant/Deputy/2IC Shop Mngr 950.11 25.00 31.25 31.25 37.50 31.25 37.50 665.10
Level 7 
Visual Merchandiser, Clerical Officer 
Level 4 997.78 26.26 32.82 32.82 39.39 32.82 39.39 698.45
Level 8 
Shop Manager, Clerical Officer Level 5 1,038.24 27.32 34.15 34.15 40.98 34.15 40.98 726.77
JUNIoR RATES
Age % of weekly 

rate of pay
Under 16 years of age 45 381.84 10.05 12.56 12.56 15.08 12.56 15.08 267.30
16 years of age 50 424.27 11.17 13.96 13.96 16.76 13.96 16.76 297.00
17 years of age 60 509.11 13.40 16.75 16.75 20.10 16.75 20.10 356.40
18 years of age 70 593.97 15.63 19.54 19.54 23.45 19.54 23.45 415.78
19 years of age 80 678.85 17.86 22.33 22.33 26.80 22.33 26.80 475.20
20 years of age 100 (from 1 

July 2015, after 
six months’ 
employment with 
employer) 848.54 22.33 27.91 27.91 33.50 27.91 33.50 593.98

AppRENTICES
Apprenticeship Year % of Level 4
1st Year 50 449.82 11.84
2nd Year 60 539.78 14.21
3rd Year 80 719.71 18.94
4th Year 90 809.68 21.31

Sunday RateS 
normal rate + 95% (195%) from 1 July 2017 
normal rate + 80% (180%) from 1 July 2018
normal rate + 65% (165%) from 1 July 2019 
normal rate + 50% (150%) from 1 July 2020

GENERAL RETAIL INDUSTRY AWARD 2010 
fRom 1 fEbRUARY To 31 AUGUST 2021

 
mINImUm WAGE RATES

EffECTIVE  
1 fEbRUARY 2021

DOES NoT APPLY TO WOOLWORTHS, COLES, 
MYER, TARGET, COUNTRY ROAD, ROCKMANS, 
BIG W, PETROL PLUS, KMART, HARRIS SCARFE, 

JUST JEANS, OFFICEWORKS, K&D WAREHOUSE, 
VEHICLE INDUSTRY, BUNNINGS HARDWARE, 

MILLERS, BETTS & BETTS, PRICELINE AND  
PRICE ATTACK, WATTYL PAINTS SPOTLIGHT  

AND FAST FOOD WORKERS
LAST WAGE INCREASE $14.24 

 
 

Ordinary Hours

38 HOUR 
WEEKLY 

RATE

7am to 9pm 
Monday to Friday

After 6pm 
Monday to Friday

7am to 6pm 
Saturday

Hourly Rate Hourly Rate Hourly Rate
Full-time 

and 
part-time 
up to 38 
hours a 
week

Casual 
loading 
of 25%

Full-time 
and 

part-time 
loading 
of 25%

Casual 
loading of 

50% 

Full-time 
and 

part-time 
loading 
of 25%

Casual 
loading  
of 50% 

17.5% 
annual 
leave 

loading 
on four 
weeks’ 
leave

RETAIL EmpLoYEE $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Level 1 
Shop Assistant, Checkout Operator, 
Trolley Collector, Video Hire Worker, LPO, 
Clerical Assistant 827.84 21.78 27.23 27.23 32.68 27.23 32.68 579.50
Level 2 
Forklift Operator 847.58 22.31 27.88 27.88 33.46 27.88 33.46 593.31
Level 3 
Dept Mngr 2IC, Corsetiere, Snr LPO, Cook 860.70 22.65 28.31 28.31 33.98 28.31 33.98 602.49
Level 4 
Trades Qualified (e.g. Butcher, Baker), 
Clerical Officer Level 2, Shiftworker/
Nightfill Supervisor 877.70 23.10 28.87 28.87 34.65 28.87 34.65 614.39
Level 5 
Tradesperson in charge of other 
Tradespersons, Services Supervisor 
(more than 15 employees) 913.72 24.05 30.06 30.06 36.07 30.06 36.07 639.60
Level 6 
Section/Dept Manager (5+ employees  
including self), Clerical Officer Level 3,  
Assistant/Deputy/2IC Shop Mngr 926.94 24.39 30.49 30.49 36.59 30.49 36.59 648.86
Level 7 
Visual Merchandiser, Clerical Officer 
Level 4 973.44 25.62 32.02 32.02 38.43 32.02 38.43 681.41
Level 8 
Shop Manager, Clerical Officer Level 5 1,012.92 26.66 33.32 33.32 39.98 33.32 39.98 709.04
JUNIoR RATES
Age % of weekly 

rate of pay
Under 16 years of age 45 372.53 9.80 12.25 12.25 14.70 12.25 14.70 256.28
16 years of age 50 413.92 10.89 13.61 13.61 16.34 13.61 16.34 289.78
17 years of age 60 496.70 13.07 16.34 16.34 19.61 16.34 19.61 347.69
18 years of age 70 579.48 15.25 19.06 19.06 22.88 19.06 22.88 405.64
19 years of age 80 662.29 17.43 21.78 21.78 26.14 21.78 26.14 463.60
20 years of age 100 (from 1 

July 2015, after 
six months’ 
employment with 
employer) 827.84 21.78 27.23 27.23 32.68 27.23 32.68 579.50

AppRENTICES
Apprenticeship Year % of Level 4
1st Year 50 438.85 11.55
2nd Year 60 526.62 13.86
3rd Year 80 702.16 18.48
4th Year 90 789.93 20.79



OFFICER DECLARATION STATEMENT
I, Paul Orlando Griffin, being the General Secretary of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association Tasmanian 
Branch declare that the following activities did not occur during the reporting period ending 30 June 2021.
a) Acquire an asset or liability due to an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3 of the RO Act, a restructure of the 

branches of an organisation, a determination or revocation by the General Manager, Fair Work Commission 
b) Have another entity administer the financial affairs of the reporting unit
c) Make a payment to a former related party of the reporting unit 

Signed by the officer: Paul Orlando Griffin — General Secretary 
Dated 15 September 2021

s.255(2A) Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) 
The state council presents the expenditure report as required under subsection 255(2A) on the reporting unit for the 
year ended 30 June 2021.

ExpENDITuRE AS REquIRED uNDER S. 255(2A) RO ACT 
FOR ThE yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

Name and title of designated officer: Paul Orlando Griffin — General Secretary 
Dated 15 September 2021

OpERATING REpORT
The State Council presents its report on the reporting unit for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.
Review of principal activities, the results of those activities and any significant changes in the nature of those activities  
during the year
The principal activities of the Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association - Tasmanian Branch (the 
Association) during the year were to promote the interests of its members through a quarterly journal and other 
publications outlining implementation of any new enterprise agreements, wage increases and changes to industrial 
legislation both Federal and State.
To set targets of member recruitment in each company where the Association had members, to attain eventual 100% 
membership with a calendar year goal in excess of 6,000 members.
Significant changes in financial affairs
There were no significant changes in the financial affairs of the Association. 
Right of members to resign
A member may resign in accordance with Branch Rule 12.
Officers or members who are superannuation fund trustee(s) or director of a company that is a superannuation fund 
trustee where being a member or officer of a registered organisation is a criterion for
No officer or member of the Union is a trustee (or a director of a union that is a trustee) of a superannuation entity, 
where a criterion for them being a trustee (or a director) is that they are an officer or member of the union.
Number of members
The Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch had 5130 members as at 30 June 2021 
(2020: 4897) which included both honorary and life members, with the highest number of members throughout the 
2021 financial year reaching 5137.
Number of employees
The Association employed eleven staff which includes one part-time and two casual staff.
Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the financial year
All members held these positions for the entire reporting period unless indicated otherwise.
General President: Isabell Wells  
Branch Vice President: Ross Charlton
General Secretary and Treasurer: Paul Griffin
State Committee: Fiona Smith  Retired 
 Sharon Butcher   
 Aniela Harris 
 Katrina Barr 
 Leanne Porter 
 Chris Stilgoe 
 Joel Tynan  New member

Name and title of designated officer: Paul Orlando Griffin — General Secretary 
Dated 15 September 2021

DECLARATION By STATE COuNCIL  
FOR ThE yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

On the 15 September 2021 the State Council of the Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian 
Branch passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) for the year ended 
30 June 2021:
The State Council declares that in its opinion:
(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;
(b) the financial statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or 

Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act);
(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and 

cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate;
(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they 

become due and payable; and
(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:

(i) meetings of the State Council were held in accordance with the rules of the organisation including the rules of 
a branch concerned; and

(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the organisation 
including the rules of a branch concerned; and

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO Act; and
(iv) where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the reporting unit 

have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the other reporting units of the 
organisation; and

(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or Commissioner duly 
made under section 272 of the RO Act has been provided to the member or Commissioner; and

(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work Commission under section 
273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the State Council. 
Name and title of designated officer: Paul Orlando Griffin — General Secretary 

Dated 15 September 2021

STATEMENT OF pROFIT OR LOSS AND OThER COMpREhENSIVE INCOME 
FOR ThE yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

Continuing Operations Note 2021 $ 2020 $
Revenue
Membership dues 4(a) 1,776,507 1,783,913
Interest 4(b) 24,917 60,145
Other revenue 4(c) 14,976 148,332

1,816,400 1,992,390
Expenditure
Direct member benefits expenses 163,892 194,310
Affiliation fees 5(a) 14,688 15,200
Capitation fees 5(b) 225,286 220,150
Marketing expenses 190,520 265,459
Occupancy expenses 28,998 33,822
Administration expenses 5(c) 248,896 228,222
Employee benefits expenses 5(d) 729,526 661,365
Grants or donations 5(e) 4,559 3,100
Motor vehicle expenses 52,478 45,570
Depreciation 5(f) 79,702 83,691
Loss on sale of asset 5(h) - 2,551

1,738,545 1,753,440
Surplus for the year 77,855 238,950
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
  Gain on revaluation of land and buildings - -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 77,855 238,950

The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction  
with the notes to the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL pOSITION AS AT 30 juNE 2021
Note 2021 $ 2020 $

Current assets
Cash and bank balances 6 527,194 386,105
Trade and other receivables 7 250,197 305,761
Inventories 8 11,671 13,704
Financial Assets 9 2,927,781 2,888,776
Total current assets 3,716,843 3,594,346
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 1,032,055 1,058,226
Right of use asset 13(a) 48,805 62,750
Total non-current assets 1,080,860 1,120,976
Total assets 4,797,703 4,715,322
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 80,231 102,416
Lease liabilities 13(b) 13,642 12,678
Provisions 12 206,773 172,884
Total current liabilities 300,646 287,978
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 12 24,485 18,985
Lease liabilities 13(b) 38,609 52,251
Total non-current liabilities 63,094 71,237
Total liabilities 363,740 359,214
Net assets 4,433,963 4,356,108
Equity
Retained earnings 14 3,624,742 3,546,887
Reserves 15 809,221 809,221
Total equity 4,433,963 4,356,108

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

Remuneration 
and other 

employment-
related costs and 

expenses -
employees

39%

Advertising
10%

Operating costs
51%

Donations to 
political parties

0%
Legal Costs

0%

Remuneration 
and other 

employment-
related costs and 

expenses -
employees

44%
Advertising

6%

Operating costs
50%

Donation to 
political parties

0%
Legal Costs

0%

ShOp, DISTRIBuTIVE AND ALLIED EMpLOyEES’ ASSOCIATION,  
TASMANIAN BRANCh ANNuAL FINANCIAL REpORT  

FOR ThE yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

Remuneration 
and other 

employment-
related costs and 

expenses -
employees

39%

Advertising
10%

Operating costs
51%

Donations to 
political parties

0%
Legal Costs

0%

Remuneration 
and other 

employment-
related costs and 

expenses -
employees

44%
Advertising

6%

Operating costs
50%

Donation to 
political parties

0%
Legal Costs

0%

STATEMENT OF ChANGES IN EquITy  
FOR ThE FINANCIAL yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

Reserves  
$

Retained earnings  
$

Total  
$

Balance at 1 July 2019 809,221 3,307,937 4,117,158
Profit for the year - 238,950 238,950
Other comprehensive income for the year 
Realisation of amount previously realised as asset 
revaluation reserve

-
 
-

-
 
-

-
 
-

Balance at 30 June 2020 809,221 3,546,887 4,356,108
Balance at 1 July 2020 809,221 3,546,887 4,356,108
Profit for the year - 77,855 77,855
Other comprehensive income for the year - - -
Balance at 30 June 2021 809,221 3,624,742 4,433,963

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASh FLOWS  
FOR ThE FINANCIAL yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

Note 2021 $ 2020 $
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from members and other third parties 2,026,195 2,107,945
Payment to suppliers and employees (1,816,482) (1,827,241)
Interest and other costs of finance paid (2,272) (2,750)
Income taxes paid - -
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 20(b) 207,441 277,954
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 24,917 60,145
Payments for property, plant and equipment (39,587) (44,077)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 909
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (14,670) 16,977
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease payments (12,677) (11,765)
Net cash used in financing activities (12,677) (11,765)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 180,094 283,166
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 3,274,881 2,991,715
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 20(a) 3,454,975 3,274,881

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

NOTES TO ThE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR ThE FINANCIAL yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

1. General information
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch is the Tasmanian branch of the national  
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association. The Association’s registered office and its principal place of  
business are as follows:
Registered office 
72 York Street
Launceston
TASMANIA 7250
Principal place of business 
72 York Street
Launceston
TASMANIA 7250
2. adoption of new and revised accountinG standards 
2.1 New and revised AASBs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in the financial statements
In the current year, the Association has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual 
reporting period. The adoption of these new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not had a material impact 
on the current or prior periods.
2.2 New and revised Australian Accounting Standards in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Association has not applied the following new and revised 
Australian Accounting Standards, Interpretations and amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective:
Standard/Amendment Effective for annual reporting 

periods beginning on or after
AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –  
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

1 January 2022

AASB 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –  
Annual Improvements 2018-2020 and Other Amendments

1 January 2022

AASB 2020-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –  
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

1 June 2020

3. siGnificant accountinG policies
Statement of compliance
The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the 
Association’s constitution, the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations, and complies with other requirements of the law. The financial report 
includes the financial statements of the Association. For the purposes of preparing the financial statements, the 
Association is a not-for-profit entity.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the State Council on 15 September 2021.
Basis of preparation
The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain non-current 
assets and financial instruments. Historical cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for 
assets. All amounts are presented in Australian dollars.
The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial 
report:
(a) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
(c) Employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long 
service leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.
Liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at their 
nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
Liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are 
measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the association in respect of 
services provided by employees up to reporting date.
Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.
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DECLARATION By STATE COuNCIL  
FOR ThE yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

On the 15 September 2021 the State Council of the Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian 
Branch passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) for the year ended 
30 June 2021:
The State Council declares that in its opinion:
(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;
(b) the financial statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or 

Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act);
(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and 

cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate;
(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they 

become due and payable; and
(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:

(i) meetings of the State Council were held in accordance with the rules of the organisation including the rules of 
a branch concerned; and

(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the organisation 
including the rules of a branch concerned; and

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO Act; and
(iv) where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the reporting unit 

have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the other reporting units of the 
organisation; and

(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or Commissioner duly 
made under section 272 of the RO Act has been provided to the member or Commissioner; and

(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work Commission under section 
273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the State Council. 
Name and title of designated officer: Paul Orlando Griffin — General Secretary 

Dated 15 September 2021

STATEMENT OF pROFIT OR LOSS AND OThER COMpREhENSIVE INCOME 
FOR ThE yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

Continuing Operations Note 2021 $ 2020 $
Revenue
Membership dues 4(a) 1,776,507 1,783,913
Interest 4(b) 24,917 60,145
Other revenue 4(c) 14,976 148,332

1,816,400 1,992,390
Expenditure
Direct member benefits expenses 163,892 194,310
Affiliation fees 5(a) 14,688 15,200
Capitation fees 5(b) 225,286 220,150
Marketing expenses 190,520 265,459
Occupancy expenses 28,998 33,822
Administration expenses 5(c) 248,896 228,222
Employee benefits expenses 5(d) 729,526 661,365
Grants or donations 5(e) 4,559 3,100
Motor vehicle expenses 52,478 45,570
Depreciation 5(f) 79,702 83,691
Loss on sale of asset 5(h) - 2,551

1,738,545 1,753,440
Surplus for the year 77,855 238,950
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
  Gain on revaluation of land and buildings - -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 77,855 238,950

The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction  
with the notes to the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL pOSITION AS AT 30 juNE 2021
Note 2021 $ 2020 $

Current assets
Cash and bank balances 6 527,194 386,105
Trade and other receivables 7 250,197 305,761
Inventories 8 11,671 13,704
Financial Assets 9 2,927,781 2,888,776
Total current assets 3,716,843 3,594,346
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 1,032,055 1,058,226
Right of use asset 13(a) 48,805 62,750
Total non-current assets 1,080,860 1,120,976
Total assets 4,797,703 4,715,322
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 80,231 102,416
Lease liabilities 13(b) 13,642 12,678
Provisions 12 206,773 172,884
Total current liabilities 300,646 287,978
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 12 24,485 18,985
Lease liabilities 13(b) 38,609 52,251
Total non-current liabilities 63,094 71,237
Total liabilities 363,740 359,214
Net assets 4,433,963 4,356,108
Equity
Retained earnings 14 3,624,742 3,546,887
Reserves 15 809,221 809,221
Total equity 4,433,963 4,356,108

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

ShOp, DISTRIBuTIVE AND ALLIED EMpLOyEES’ ASSOCIATION,  
TASMANIAN BRANCh ANNuAL FINANCIAL REpORT  

FOR ThE yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

STATEMENT OF ChANGES IN EquITy  
FOR ThE FINANCIAL yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

Reserves  
$

Retained earnings  
$

Total  
$

Balance at 1 July 2019 809,221 3,307,937 4,117,158
Profit for the year - 238,950 238,950
Other comprehensive income for the year 
Realisation of amount previously realised as asset 
revaluation reserve

-
 
-

-
 
-

-
 
-

Balance at 30 June 2020 809,221 3,546,887 4,356,108
Balance at 1 July 2020 809,221 3,546,887 4,356,108
Profit for the year - 77,855 77,855
Other comprehensive income for the year - - -
Balance at 30 June 2021 809,221 3,624,742 4,433,963

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASh FLOWS  
FOR ThE FINANCIAL yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

Note 2021 $ 2020 $
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from members and other third parties 2,026,195 2,107,945
Payment to suppliers and employees (1,816,482) (1,827,241)
Interest and other costs of finance paid (2,272) (2,750)
Income taxes paid - -
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 20(b) 207,441 277,954
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 24,917 60,145
Payments for property, plant and equipment (39,587) (44,077)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 909
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (14,670) 16,977
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease payments (12,677) (11,765)
Net cash used in financing activities (12,677) (11,765)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 180,094 283,166
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 3,274,881 2,991,715
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 20(a) 3,454,975 3,274,881

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

NOTES TO ThE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR ThE FINANCIAL yEAR ENDED 30 juNE 2021

1. General information
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch is the Tasmanian branch of the national  
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association. The Association’s registered office and its principal place of  
business are as follows:
Registered office 
72 York Street
Launceston
TASMANIA 7250
Principal place of business 
72 York Street
Launceston
TASMANIA 7250
2. adoption of new and revised accountinG standards 
2.1 New and revised AASBs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in the financial statements
In the current year, the Association has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual 
reporting period. The adoption of these new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not had a material impact 
on the current or prior periods.
2.2 New and revised Australian Accounting Standards in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Association has not applied the following new and revised 
Australian Accounting Standards, Interpretations and amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective:
Standard/Amendment Effective for annual reporting 

periods beginning on or after
AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –  
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

1 January 2022

AASB 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –  
Annual Improvements 2018-2020 and Other Amendments

1 January 2022

AASB 2020-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –  
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

1 June 2020

3. siGnificant accountinG policies
Statement of compliance
The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the 
Association’s constitution, the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations, and complies with other requirements of the law. The financial report 
includes the financial statements of the Association. For the purposes of preparing the financial statements, the 
Association is a not-for-profit entity.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the State Council on 15 September 2021.
Basis of preparation
The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain non-current 
assets and financial instruments. Historical cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for 
assets. All amounts are presented in Australian dollars.
The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial 
report:
(a) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
(c) Employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long 
service leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.
Liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at their 
nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
Liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are 
measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the association in respect of 
services provided by employees up to reporting date.
Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.

(d) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Association becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
profit or loss.
(e) Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular 
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, 
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:
•	 The	financial	asset	is	held	within	a	business	model	whose	objective	is	to	hold	financial	assets	in	order	to	collect	

contractual cash flows
•		 The	contractual	terms	of	the	financial	asset	give	rise	on	specified	dates	to	cash	flows	that	are	solely	payments	of	

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
The Association does not irrevocably designate debt instruments that meet the conditions of amortised cost as fair 
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), therefore by default all other financial assets are measured 
subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Amortised cost and effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period.
For financial assets the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter 
period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition 
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference 
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a 
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost (see above) are measured at 
FVTPL.
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or 
losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging relationship.
Impairment of financial assets
The Association recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are 
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and contract assets. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at 
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.
The Association always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract assets. The expected credit losses 
on hese financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Association’s historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of 
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money 
where appropriate.
For all other financial instruments, the Association recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the Association measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an 
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from 
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Write-off policy
The Association writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial 
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has 
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under 
the Association’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are 
recognised in profit or loss.
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default and the 
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data 
adjusted by forwardlooking information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this 
is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the 
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to 
be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Association’s understanding of 
the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.
For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are 
due to the Association in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Association expects to receive, 
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
If the Association has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in 
the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no 
longer met, the Association measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting 
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was used.
De-recognition of financial assets
The Association derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 
to another entity. If the Association neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Association recognises its retained interest in the asset and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Association retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Association continues to recognise the financial asset and also 
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On de-recognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
(f) Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL 
in certain circumstances, however the Association does not currently designate financial liabilities as FVTPL or hold 
liabilities for trading and therefore by default all the Association’s financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest 
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
The Association derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Association’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the 
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
(g) Income Tax
The Association is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 however still  
has obligation for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST).
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(h) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs, are assigned to inventory on hand by the 
method most appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being valued on a first in first out 
basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs 
necessary to make the sale.
(i) Property, plant and equipment
Purchases of land, buildings, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the Statement of Financial 
Position. The initial cost of an asset includes an estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the item and 
restoring the site on which it is located.
Following initial recognition at cost, land and buildings are carried at fair value less subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient frequency such that 
the carrying amount of assets do not differ materially from those that would be determined using fair values as at 
the reporting date.
( j) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Member subscriptions
Revenue from subscriptions is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recorded as revenue in the year to which  
it relates.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:
(a) the Association has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
(b) the Association retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with 

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
(c) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and
(e) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Rendering of services
Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. 
Member subscriptions and car park rental income is recognised to the extent that the associated services relating to 
the fees have been provided.
Interest revenue
Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest 
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
(k) Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except:
(a) where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the 

cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or
(b) for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.
Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as  
operating cash flows.
(l) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Association’s accounting policies, which are described above, management is required to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The State Council has engaged a third party property valuer, to determine the 
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. In estimating the fair value of these assets, 
the property valuer uses market-observable date to the extent available, to establish an appropriate fair value of the 
assets.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
(m) Capitation fees and levies
Capitation fees and levies are recognised on an accrual basis and recorded as a revenue and/or expense in the year  
to which it relates.
(n) Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position but are reported 
in the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an 
existing liability or asset in respect of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are disclosed 
when settlement is probable but not virtually certain, and contingent liabilities are disclosed when settlement is 
greater than remote.
(o) Going concern
The Association is not reliant on the agreed financial support of another reporting unit to continue on a going  
concern basis.
The Association has not agreed to provide financial supporting to ensure another reporting unit has the ability  
to continue as a going concern. 
(p) Leases
The Association assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Association 
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which 
it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of 
low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these 
leases, the Association recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits 
from the leased assets are consumed.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the 
Association uses its incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
•		 Fixed	lease	payments	(including	in-substance	fixed	payments),	less	any	lease	incentives	receivable;
•		 Variable	lease	payments	that	depend	on	an	index	or	rate,	initially	measured	using	the	index	or	rate	at	the	

commencement date;
•		 The	amount	expected	to	be	payable	by	the	lessee	under	residual	value	guarantees;
•		 The	exercise	price	of	purchase	options,	if	the	lessee	is	reasonably	certain	to	exercise	the	options;	and
•		 Payments	of	penalties	for	terminating	the	lease,	if	the	lease	term	reflects	the	exercise	of	an	option	to	terminate	

the lease.
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability 
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
The Association remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use 
asset) whenever:
•		 The	lease	term	has	changed	or	there	is	a	significant	event	or	change	in	circumstances	resulting	in	a	change	in	

the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the 
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

•		 The	lease	payments	change	due	to	changes	in	an	index	or	rate	or	a	change	in	expected	payment	under	a	
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease 
payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating 
interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

•		 A	lease	contract	is	modified	and	the	lease	modification	is	not	accounted	for	as	a	separate	lease,	in	which	case	
the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease 
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Association did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at 
or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Whenever the Association incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on 
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a 
provision is recognised and measured under AASB 137. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the 
costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a 
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Association 
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying 
asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.
The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position. The 
Association applies AASB 136 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified 
impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.
As a practical expedient, AASB 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for 
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Association has not used this practical 
expedient. For contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, 
the Association allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

4. revenue 2021 $ 2020 $
An analysis of the Association’s revenue for the year, from continuing operations, is as follows:
(a) Revenue from member subscriptions 1,776,507 1,783,913
(b) Interest 24,917 60,145
(c) Other revenue
     Movie ticket sales 5,921 17,393
     ATO Cash Flow Boost - 100,000
     Car park rent 9,055 8,401
     Other - 22,538

14,976 148,332

5. profit for the year 
Profit for the year has been arrived at after recognising the following gains and losses:
(a) Affiliation fees
Australian Labor Party - Tasmania 14,688 15,200
(b) Capitation fees 
Unions Tasmania 39,176 36,026
SDAEA National Account 161,835 160,108
SDAEA International Fund 24,275 24,016

225,286 220,150
(c) Administration fees
Consideration to employers for payroll deductions
    Commissions paid to employers 6,652 3,722
Delegate meetings and training 14,246 19,079
Meeting expenses 123 153
Other administration costs 227,875 205,268

248,896 228,222
(d) Employee expenses
Holders of office:
Wages and salaries 73,448 72,482
Superannuation 8,128 8,010
Leave and other entitlements 12,113 11,839
Other employee expenses 9,325 20,616

103,014 112,947
Employees other than office holders:
Wages and salaries 481,305 416,544
Superannuation 49,514 43,495
Leave and other entitlements 44,260 47,426
Other employee expenses 51,433 40,953

626,512 548,418
Total employee expenses 729,526 661,365

(e) Grants or donations
Grants:
     Total paid that were $1,000 or less - -
     Total paid that exceeded $1,000 - -
Donations:
     Total paid that were $1,000 or less 4,559 3,100
     Total paid that exceeded $1,000 - -

4,559 3,100
(f) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of non-current assets 65,758 69,747
Depreciation of right of use assets 13,944 13,944

79,702 83,691
(g) Legal costs
Litigation - -
Other legal matters - -

- -
(h) Loss on sale of assets - 2,551
6. cash and cash equivalents
Petty cash - Launceston 100 100
Petty cash - Hobart 100 100
Undeposited Funds - 195
Cash at bank - trading account 526,994 385,710
CBA Term Deposit - -
CBA Online saver - -

527,194 386,105
7. trade and other receivables
Subscriptions in arrears 146,787 150,770
Sundry debtors and prepayments 39,463 39,615
Car park debtors 420 300
Member and employee loans 63,527 63,449
Accrued interest income - 14,127
ATO cash flow boost - 37,500
Receivables from other reporting units - -

250,197 305,761
Less allowance for expected credit losses - -
Net trade and other receivables 250,197 305,761
The average credit period on sales is 60 days. No interest is charged on outstanding trade receivables. Included in the 
Association’s trade receivables are an immaterial amount of debtors greater than 90 days.
The Association has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant change 
in credit quality and amounts receivable are still considered recoverable.

8. inventories 2021 $ 2020 $
Movie tickets 11,671 13,704
9. financial assets
Term Deposits 2,927,781 2,888,776

10. property, plant and equipment
Freehold land  

at fair  
value 

$

Buildings  
at fair  
value 

$

Plant and 
equipment 

at cost 
$

Low value  
pool 

 
$

Total 
 
 
$

Gross carrying amount      
Balance at 30 June 2019^ 650,000 237,198 468,690 132,149 1,488,037
Additions - - 44,077 - 44,077
Disposals - - (23,501) - (23,501)
Revaluation - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2020^ 650,000 237,198 489,266 132,149 1,508,613
Additions - - 39,587 - 39,587
Disposals - - - - -
Revaluation - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2021 650,000 237,198 528,853 132,149 1,548,200
Accumulated depreciation      
Balance at 30 June 2019^ - (12,650) (256,708) (131,323) (400,681)
Depreciation expense - (5,781) (63,656) (310) (69,747)
Disposals - - 20,041 - 20,041
Revaluation - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2020^ - (18,431) (300,323) (131,633) (450,387)
Depreciation expense - (5,781) (59,783) (194) (65,758)
Disposals - - - - -
Revaluation - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2021 - (24,212) (360,106) (131,827) (516,145)
Net book value
As at 30 June 2020 650,000 218,767 188,943 516 1,058,226
As at 30 June 2021 650,000 212,986 168,747 322 1,032,055
The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:
Class of asset Depreciation rate
Buildings 2% - 2 .5%
Plant and equipment 10% - 67%
Low value pool 19% - 38%
Aggregate depreciation allocated, whether recognised as an expense or capitalised as part of the carrying amount of 
other assets during the year:

2021 $ 2020 $
Buildings 5,781 5,781
Plant and equipment 59,783 63,656
Low value pool 194 310

65,758 69,747
^ Refer to note 15
11. trade and other payables
Trade payables 14,984 63,093
Accruals - -
Other payables 64,634 38,688
Payables to other reporting units - -
Consideration to employers for payroll deductions 613 635
Legal costs - -

80,231 102,416
The average credit period for purchases of goods and services is 30 days. No interest is charged on trade payables.

12. provisions
Employee Provisions
Office Holders
Annual Leave 11,294 15,562
Long Service Leave 71,400 69,088
Separation and redundancies - -
Other - -

82,694 84,650
Employees other than office holders:
Annual Leave 59,579 48,955
Long Service Leave 88,985 58,264
Separation and redundancies - -
Other - -

148,564 107,219
231,258 191,869

Current 206,773 172,884
Non Current 24,485 18,985

231,258 191,869
13. (a) riGht of use assets
Building
At cost: 76,694 76,694
Accumulated Depreciation (27,889) (13,944)
Net book value 48,805 62,750
13. (b) lease liabilities
Current lease liability 13,642 12,678
Non-current lease liability 38,609 52,251
Total 52,251 64,929
14. retained earninGs
Balance at beginning of financial year 3,546,887 3,307,937
Net profit attributable to members of the Association 77,855 238,950
Balance at end of financial year 3,624,742 3,546,887
15. reserves
Asset revaluation reserve
Balance at beginning of financial year 809,221 809,221
Movements - -
Transfer to retained earnings - -
Balance at end of financial year 809,221 809,221
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The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at 
or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Whenever the Association incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on 
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a 
provision is recognised and measured under AASB 137. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the 
costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a 
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Association 
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying 
asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.
The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position. The 
Association applies AASB 136 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified 
impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.
As a practical expedient, AASB 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for 
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Association has not used this practical 
expedient. For contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, 
the Association allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

4. revenue 2021 $ 2020 $
An analysis of the Association’s revenue for the year, from continuing operations, is as follows:
(a) Revenue from member subscriptions 1,776,507 1,783,913
(b) Interest 24,917 60,145
(c) Other revenue
     Movie ticket sales 5,921 17,393
     ATO Cash Flow Boost - 100,000
     Car park rent 9,055 8,401
     Other - 22,538

14,976 148,332

5. profit for the year 
Profit for the year has been arrived at after recognising the following gains and losses:
(a) Affiliation fees
Australian Labor Party - Tasmania 14,688 15,200
(b) Capitation fees 
Unions Tasmania 39,176 36,026
SDAEA National Account 161,835 160,108
SDAEA International Fund 24,275 24,016

225,286 220,150
(c) Administration fees
Consideration to employers for payroll deductions
    Commissions paid to employers 6,652 3,722
Delegate meetings and training 14,246 19,079
Meeting expenses 123 153
Other administration costs 227,875 205,268

248,896 228,222
(d) Employee expenses
Holders of office:
Wages and salaries 73,448 72,482
Superannuation 8,128 8,010
Leave and other entitlements 12,113 11,839
Other employee expenses 9,325 20,616

103,014 112,947
Employees other than office holders:
Wages and salaries 481,305 416,544
Superannuation 49,514 43,495
Leave and other entitlements 44,260 47,426
Other employee expenses 51,433 40,953

626,512 548,418
Total employee expenses 729,526 661,365

(e) Grants or donations
Grants:
     Total paid that were $1,000 or less - -
     Total paid that exceeded $1,000 - -
Donations:
     Total paid that were $1,000 or less 4,559 3,100
     Total paid that exceeded $1,000 - -

4,559 3,100
(f) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of non-current assets 65,758 69,747
Depreciation of right of use assets 13,944 13,944

79,702 83,691
(g) Legal costs
Litigation - -
Other legal matters - -

- -
(h) Loss on sale of assets - 2,551
6. cash and cash equivalents
Petty cash - Launceston 100 100
Petty cash - Hobart 100 100
Undeposited Funds - 195
Cash at bank - trading account 526,994 385,710
CBA Term Deposit - -
CBA Online saver - -

527,194 386,105
7. trade and other receivables
Subscriptions in arrears 146,787 150,770
Sundry debtors and prepayments 39,463 39,615
Car park debtors 420 300
Member and employee loans 63,527 63,449
Accrued interest income - 14,127
ATO cash flow boost - 37,500
Receivables from other reporting units - -

250,197 305,761
Less allowance for expected credit losses - -
Net trade and other receivables 250,197 305,761
The average credit period on sales is 60 days. No interest is charged on outstanding trade receivables. Included in the 
Association’s trade receivables are an immaterial amount of debtors greater than 90 days.
The Association has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant change 
in credit quality and amounts receivable are still considered recoverable.

8. inventories 2021 $ 2020 $
Movie tickets 11,671 13,704
9. financial assets
Term Deposits 2,927,781 2,888,776

10. property, plant and equipment
Freehold land  

at fair  
value 

$

Buildings  
at fair  
value 

$

Plant and 
equipment 

at cost 
$

Low value  
pool 

 
$

Total 
 
 
$

Gross carrying amount      
Balance at 30 June 2019^ 650,000 237,198 468,690 132,149 1,488,037
Additions - - 44,077 - 44,077
Disposals - - (23,501) - (23,501)
Revaluation - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2020^ 650,000 237,198 489,266 132,149 1,508,613
Additions - - 39,587 - 39,587
Disposals - - - - -
Revaluation - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2021 650,000 237,198 528,853 132,149 1,548,200
Accumulated depreciation      
Balance at 30 June 2019^ - (12,650) (256,708) (131,323) (400,681)
Depreciation expense - (5,781) (63,656) (310) (69,747)
Disposals - - 20,041 - 20,041
Revaluation - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2020^ - (18,431) (300,323) (131,633) (450,387)
Depreciation expense - (5,781) (59,783) (194) (65,758)
Disposals - - - - -
Revaluation - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2021 - (24,212) (360,106) (131,827) (516,145)
Net book value
As at 30 June 2020 650,000 218,767 188,943 516 1,058,226
As at 30 June 2021 650,000 212,986 168,747 322 1,032,055
The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:
Class of asset Depreciation rate
Buildings 2% - 2 .5%
Plant and equipment 10% - 67%
Low value pool 19% - 38%
Aggregate depreciation allocated, whether recognised as an expense or capitalised as part of the carrying amount of 
other assets during the year:

2021 $ 2020 $
Buildings 5,781 5,781
Plant and equipment 59,783 63,656
Low value pool 194 310

65,758 69,747
^ Refer to note 15
11. trade and other payables
Trade payables 14,984 63,093
Accruals - -
Other payables 64,634 38,688
Payables to other reporting units - -
Consideration to employers for payroll deductions 613 635
Legal costs - -

80,231 102,416
The average credit period for purchases of goods and services is 30 days. No interest is charged on trade payables.

12. provisions
Employee Provisions
Office Holders
Annual Leave 11,294 15,562
Long Service Leave 71,400 69,088
Separation and redundancies - -
Other - -

82,694 84,650
Employees other than office holders:
Annual Leave 59,579 48,955
Long Service Leave 88,985 58,264
Separation and redundancies - -
Other - -

148,564 107,219
231,258 191,869

Current 206,773 172,884
Non Current 24,485 18,985

231,258 191,869
13. (a) riGht of use assets
Building
At cost: 76,694 76,694
Accumulated Depreciation (27,889) (13,944)
Net book value 48,805 62,750
13. (b) lease liabilities
Current lease liability 13,642 12,678
Non-current lease liability 38,609 52,251
Total 52,251 64,929
14. retained earninGs
Balance at beginning of financial year 3,546,887 3,307,937
Net profit attributable to members of the Association 77,855 238,950
Balance at end of financial year 3,624,742 3,546,887
15. reserves
Asset revaluation reserve
Balance at beginning of financial year 809,221 809,221
Movements - -
Transfer to retained earnings - -
Balance at end of financial year 809,221 809,221

The Association’s land and buildings are stated at their estimated fair values with reference to an external valuation 
performed periodically. The fair value estimates include significant management judgement around overall market 
conditions, adjusted if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset at the 
statement of financial position date.
The fair value of the freehold land was determined based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent 
transaction prices for similar properties. The fair value of the buildings was determined using the cost approach that 
reflects the cost to a market participant to construct assets of comparable utility and age. Significant inputs include 
management’s assessment of discount / premium on the observable market rates, for which a change in determined 
rate could cause a material adjustment to the fair value of the land and buildings. There has been no change to the 
valuation technique during the year.
16. equity 2021 $ 2020 $
Other specific disclosures - Funds
Compulsory levy/voluntary contribution fund - if invested in assets - -
Other funds required by rules - -

- -
17. commitments for expenditure 
There are no capital or other expenditure commitments contracted for as at reporting date.
18. Key manaGement personnel remuneration
Details of key management personnel
The members of the State Council and other members of key management personnel of the Association during  
the year were:
General President: Isabell Wells
Branch Vice President: Ross Charlton
General Secretary and Treasurer: Paul Griffin
State Committee: Fiona Smith Retired 
 Sharon Butcher 
 Aniela Harris 
 Katrina Barr 
 Leanne Porter 
 Chris Stilgoe 
 Joel Tynan New Member
The aggregate remuneration made to state councillors and other members of key management personnel of the  
Association is set out below:

2021 $ 2020 $
Short-term employee benefits 85,561 84,321
Post-employment benefits 8,128 8,010

93,689 92,331
(a) Transactions with key management personnel
During the year State Councillors and their related entities purchased goods, which were trivial in nature, from the 
association on the same terms and conditions available to other members.
(b) Transactions with other related parties
Other related parties include:
     SDAEA National Office
     SDAEA International Fund
(c) Loans to related parties
Loans to related parties include the following 2021 $ 2020 $
Matthew and Katrina Barr 15,900 16,420
The above loans relate to financial assistance provided to Matthew and Katrina Barr. The loans have been provided 
interest free and have an undefined term.
(d) Transactions between Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch and its related parties
During the financial year, the following material transactions occurred between the association and its other  
related parties:
(a) Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch paid annual capitation fees to  

SDAEA National Office of $161,835 (2020: $160,108)
(b) Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch paid annual capitation fees to  

SDAEA International Fund of $24,275 (2020: $24,016)
(c) Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch paid annual affiliation fees to  

ALP Tasmania of $14,688 (2020: $15,200)
(d) Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch paid annual capitation fees to  

Unions Tasmania $39,176 (2020: $36,026)
19. remuneration of auditors
Auditor of the Association: 2021 $ 2020 $
  Audit of the financial report 11,085 10,747
  Taxation services 14,720 11,980

25,805 22,727
The auditor of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. 
20. notes to the statement of cash flows
(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in banks and 
investments in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end  
of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement of 
financial position as follows:
Petty cash 200 200
Undeposited Funds - 195
Cash at bank - trading account 526,994 385,710
Term Deposits 2,927,781 2,888,776
CBA Online saver - -

3,454,975 3,274,881
(b) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/(loss) from the year 77,855 238,950
Depreciation and amortisation 79,702 83,691
Gain on revaluation - -
Interest income received and receivable (24,917) (60,145)
Gain on sale of buildings - -
Loss on sale of plant and equipment - 2,551
(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Trade and other receivables 55,564 (17,524)
Inventories 2,033 (6,405)
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Trade and other payables (22,185) 28,837
Provisions 39,389 7,999
Net cash generated by operating activities 207,441 277,954
(c) Cash flow information:
Cash inflows from another reporting unit or controlled entity - -

- -
Cash outflows to another reporting unit or controlled entity - -

- -
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRuMENTS
(a) Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, 
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.
(b) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the State Council, who has built an appropriate liquidity 
risk management framework for the management of the Association’s short, medium, and long-term funding and 
liquidity management requirements. The Association manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by 
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and 
liabilities.
Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following tables detail the Association’s remaining contractual maturity from its non-derivative financial liabilities. 
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date 
on which the Association can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows:

Weighted 
average 
effective

interest rate
%

Less than  
1 month  

 
$

1-3 months  
 
 
$

3 months  
to 1 year  

 
$

1-5 years  
 
 
$

Total  
 
 
$

2021 Amortised cost
Non-interest bearing - 80,231 - - - 80,231

80,231 - - - 80,231
2020 Amortised cost
Non-interest bearing - 102,416 - - - 102,416

102,416 - - - 102,416
The following tables detail the Association’s expected maturity from its non-derivative financial assets. The tables have 
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial assets including interest that will be earned on those 
assets except where the Association anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different period.

Weighted 
average 
effective

interest rate
%

Less than  
1 month  

 
$

1-3 months  
 
 
$

3 months  
to 1 year  

 
$

1-5 years  
 
 
$

Total  
 
 
$

2021 Amortised cost
Non-interest bearing - 777,391 - - - 777,391
Fixed interest rate 
instruments

 
0.55% - - 2,927,781 - 2,927,781

777,391 - 2,927,781 - 3,705,172
2020 Amortised cost
Non-interest bearing - 691,866 - - - 691,866
Fixed interest rate 
instruments

 
1.50% - - 2,888,776 - 2,888,776

691,866 - 2,888,776 - 3,580,642
(c) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:
-  the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active 

liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices.
-  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are determined 

in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from 
observable current market transactions.

The State Council considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised 
cost in the financial statements approximates their fair values.
(d) Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to 
the Association. The Association has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining 
sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
(e) Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The Association holds fixed interest rate investments.
As at 30 June 2021, the Association holds $2,927,781 in a fixed rate term deposit. Interest rate exposure is minimal.
22. subsequent events
There has not been any matter or circumstance occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year that has 
significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Association, the results of those operations, or 
the state of affairs of the Association in future financial years.
23. section 272 fair worK (reGistered orGanisations) act 2009
In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention of members is 
drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows:
Information to be provided to members or Commissioner:
(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed 

information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the application.
(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which, the 

information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application is given to the 
reporting unit.

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1).
24. seGment information
The Association operates in one geographical location, Tasmania. All operating income is derived from member 
subscriptions. All costs are related to providing services to its members.

INDEpENDENT AuDITOR’S REpORT TO ThE MEMBERS OF  
ThE ShOp, DISTRIBuTIVE AND ALLIED EMpLOyEES’ ASSOCIATION, 

TASMANIAN BRANCh
Opinion
We have audited the financial report of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Tasmanian Branch (the 
“Association”), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, the recovery of wages activity, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the declaration by State Council.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the Association’s financial 
position as at 30 June 2021 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards and the Association’s constitution and the requirements imposed by Part 3 of 
Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 
our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Other Information
State Council are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the Association’s annual financial report for the year ended 30 June 2021, but does not include the financial report 
and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of State Council for the Financial Report
State Council are responsible for the preparation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards, the Association’s constitution and the requirements imposed by Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and for such internal control as State Council determine is necessary to enable  
the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, State Council are responsible for assessing the ability of the Association to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless State Council either intend to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.
State Council is responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Association’s internal control.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of State Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Association to cease to continue as a going concern.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosure, and 
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with State Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
Stuart Dare is an approved auditor under section 256 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.  
He is a member of the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (CA ANZ) and holds a current Public  
Practice Certificate.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
S Dare

Partner
Chartered Accountant 

RO number (AA2017/152)
Launceston, 17 September 2021

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte organisation.

You may have noticed that there are fewer pages of financials in this edition  
of Tastalk than in last year’s Spring edition. 

Due to changes in the laws governing the publishing of financial reports, we are  
now publishing financial reports at different times of the year. 

The SDA National Office financial reports will be printed in the Summer 2021  
edition of Tastalk, or you can find them online now at sda.org.au.
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sda membership application form
Surname: Date of Birth:
Given Names:
Postal Address:
Suburb:  Postcode:
Phone Numbers:                 Home (         )  Mobile:
E-mail Address:
Employer:
Employer Location:
Occupation:
Type of Employment o Full-time (20 hours or more per week) 
 o Part-time (10-20 hours per week) 
 o Casual (less than 10 hours per week)

How many hours a week do you expect to work?                                                         Are you a student? o Yes   o No
I hereby agree to become a member of the Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees’ Association, Tasmanian Branch. I 
pledge myself to comply with the rules of the Association, and with any amendments or additions which may be duly made 
to such rules.

Signature: Date:    /     /

please return completed form to:  
paul griffin, general secretary, sda, po box 1289, launceston tas 7250

sda change of address/employment form
previous
Surname: Member No:
Given Names:
Postal Address:
Suburb: Postcode:
Employer:
Employer Location:

current
Surname: Member No:
Given Names:
Postal Address:
Suburb: Postcode:
Employer:
Employer Location:

#

#

authority to deduct union fees from wages
Name: 
Employer:

I authorise my employer to deduct from my wages the contribution prescribed by Rule 6 of the Shop, Distributive 
and Allied Employees’ Association Tasmanian Branch, the fees prescribed by the rules as varied from time to time. 
Such deduction shall be paid to the aforementioned Association on behalf of the undersigned member as Union 
Subscriptions.

Signature: Date:    /     /
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WORKPLACE ASSISTANCE
SDA Union 
131 732 
sdansw.org.au

LOOKING AFTER YOUR MENTAL HEALTH
Lifeline  
13 11 14  
lifeline.org.au

Beyond Blue 
1300 224 636 
beyondblue.org.au

Kids Helpline (Under 25) 
1800 55 1800  
kidshelpline.com.au

FINANCIAL DIFFICULTY & COUNSELLING
National Debt Hotline 
1800 007 007 
ndh.org.au

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS
Most major employers have free confidential employee assistance 
programs. If you would like the contact details of your companies 
employee assistance program contact the SDA on 131 732 or ask your 
local manager.

RELEVANT  

CONTACT DETAILS

THE UNION FOR WORKERS IN RETAIL. FASTFOOD.WAREHOUSE

SDANSW 56385_Covid-19 Thank You Card_A5_FA.indd   1-222/3/20   9:50 pm

For information on the latest health & safety measures, government  

pandemic payments and any other developments:

 go to: national.sda.com.au/coronavirus

 Follow us on social media:  sda tasmania  sdatasmania 

if you need any help...

WoRKplaCe aSSiSTanCe
SDA Tasmanian Branch
1300 152 851
sdatas.asn.au

finanCial CounSellinG
National Debt Hotline
1800 007 007
ndh.org.au

looKinG afTeR youR MenTal healTh
Lifeline
131 114
lifeline.org.au

Beyond Blue
1300 224 636
beyondblue.org.au

Kids Helpline (under 25)
1800 551 800
kidshelpline.com.au

21050

Like us on Facebook and Instagram to receive the latest in  
industrial news, services, union activities and campaigns. 

youR union iS SoCial
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